Public Document Pack

AUDIT AND STANDARDS COMMITTEE AGENDA
Monday, 26 April 2021 at 10.30 am in the https://youtu.be/zPqZpb9OOE4
From the Chief Executive, Sheena Ramsey
Item Business
1

Apologies for Absence

2

Minutes (Pages 3 - 6)
The Committee is asked to approve as a correct record the minutes of the
meeting held on 8 March 2021.

3

Declarations of Interest
Members of the Committee are invited to declare interests in any agenda items.

4

Gateshead Code of Governance for Councillors (Pages 7 - 36)
Report of the Strategic Director, Corporate Services and Governance

5

Internal Audit Charter, Strategy Statement and Annual Plan (Pages 37 - 64)
Report of the Strategic Director, Resources and Digital.

6

External Auditor: Annual Strategy Memorandum Year Ending 31 March 2021
(Pages 65 - 104)
Report of the Strategic Director, Resources and Digital

7

External Auditor: Audit Progress Report (Pages 105 - 120)
Report of the Strategic Director, Resources and Digital

8

Corporate Risk Management 2020/21 - Quarter 4 Update (Pages 121 - 124)
Report of the Strategic Director, Resources and Digital

9

Exclusion of the Press and Public
The Committee may wish to exclude the press and public from the meeting during
consideration of the remaining business in accordance with paragraph 7 of
Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972.

10

COVID Grant Post Assurance Update 2020/21 - First Tranche (Pages 125 128)
Report of the Strategic Director, Resources and Digital

11

Internal Audit Plan 2020/21 Quarterly Monitoring Report to 31 March 2021
(Pages 129 - 138)
Report of the Strategic Director, Resources and Digital

12

Date and time of next meeting
Monday 21 June 2021 at 10.00am

Contact: Helen Conway- Tel: 0191 433 3993 - Email: helenconway@gateshead.gov.uk,
Tel: , Date: Friday, 16 April 2021

Agenda Item 2
GATESHEAD METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL
AUDIT AND STANDARDS COMMITTEE MEETING
Monday, 8 March 2021

PRESENT:

Councillor M Charlton (Chair)
Councillors: R Beadle, D Burnett, L Green, S Green, H Kelly
and J McElroy,
Mr S Bell – Independent Member

APOLOGIES:
ASC304

Mr G Clark

MINUTES
The minutes of the last meeting held on 25 January 2021 were approved as a
correct record, with one amendment, that Councillor Ron Beadle was in attendance
and not Councillor John McClurey.

ASC305

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest.

ASC306

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ASSOCIATION, MODEL CODE OF CONDUCT
The Committee received a report setting out the LGA Code of Conduct and sought
further comments from members following officers reviewing the draft code to
ensure it met with best practice to making recommendations to full Council on
adopting the new model code.
Since the last meeting of the Committee members requested that officers ensure
that members across the council were aware of the proposals and details of the new
code. Additional comments have now been received and it was agreed to set up a
working group to look at these and bring them back in their entirety to the next
meeting in April.
The Committee also agreed that training be provided in June following on from the
local elections in May on the Code of Conduct and the Council’s Constitution.
RESOLVED -

i)

That the information be noted.

ii)

That a member/officer working group be established to look
at the comments received and a further report brought back
to the April meeting.

iii)

That training should be provided in June on the Code of
Conduct and the Council’s Constitution.

Page 3

ASC307

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2020/21 ASSURANCE STATEMENT
The Committee received a report which provided an overview of the work to be
undertaken to produce the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) for 2020/21 which
demonstrates the level of assurance that can be given by the Council’s control
systems and governance arrangements.
The assurance framework supports the AGS and provides councillors with
information on the Council’s control environment and governance arrangements. It
maps the Council’s strategic objectives to risks and controls and seeks assurance
from a number of sources of Council activity.
The process of preparing the AGS should itself add value to the effectiveness of the
Governance Assurance Framework. The assurance process will demonstrate four
aspects:
·
·
·
·

Identify – what do we want assurance on?
Assess – what are the sources of assurance?
Review – how is assurance validated?
Act – what are the opportunities to improve?

The Committee were advised that in preparing the governance statement it will be
necessary to review evidence from the following sources which together form the
assurance framework:
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·

Governance arrangements
Councillors
Senior Managers
The system of internal audit
Risk management arrangements
Counter Fraud arrangements
Performance Management and data quality
Views of the external auditor and other external inspectorates
The legal and regulatory framework
Financial controls
Partnership arrangements and governance
Other sources of assurance

The Committee were advised that the Council has a Local Code of Governance,
which was last updated and agreed by the Audit and Standards Committee on 25
January 2021. This code defines how the Council complies with the principles of
good governance as set out in the Local Code of Governance developed by CIPFA,
Delivering Good Governance in Local Government Framework. The principles of
good governance in the framework are:
·
·
·
·

Behaving with integrity
Ensuring openness and comprehensive engagement
Defining sustainable outcomes
Determining interventions

Page 4

·
·
·

Developing capacity
Managing risks and performance
Implementing good practice in transparency

The Committee were advised that a corporate group, chaired by the Strategic
Director, Resources and Digital will use the findings of the sources of assurance to
form a view on the adequacy of the Council’s overall internal control and governance
arrangements.
Using evidence from this assessment the Group will prepare the AGS for 2021/21
for approval by the Audit and Standards Committee in June 2021. This will then
accompany the Statement of Accounts for 2020/21.
RESOLVED -

ASC308

That the Assurance Framework as set out in the report be
agreed.

TREASURY POLICY STATEMENT AND TREASURY STRATEGY 2021/22 TO
2025/26
The Committee received a report to review the proposed Treasury Policy Statement
and Treasury Strategy for 2021/22 to 2025/26 prior to consideration by Cabinet.
The Committee were informed that in order to provide a framework for the Strategic
Director, Resources and Digital to exercise his delegated powers, the Council
agrees a five-year Treasury Management Policy and Treasury Strategy which is
reviewed at the start of each financial year.
The Committee were advised that the Treasury Policy and Treasury Strategy
appended to the main report have been prepared considering the Local Government
Act 2003, Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government’s (MHCLG)
Guidance on Local Government Investments, CIPFA’s Prudential Code for Capital
and CIPFA’s Code of Practice on Treasury Management (2017).
The Committee were advised that there was an error in the report at page 44 of the
pack, paragraph 4.9 which read:
External and Internal Borrowing
4.9

As at 30 November 2020 the Council had net debt of £595.921m; this
includes total borrowing of £665.224m and investments of £69.303m

The correct sentence should read:
As at 30 November 2020 the Council had net debt of £554.617m; this includes total
borrowing of £664.206m and investments of £109.589m
The Committee were asked to review the Treasury Policy and Treasury Strategy as
attached at appendix 1 and 2, to ensure that the Council fully complies with the
requirement of good financial practice in Treasury Management

Page 5

The Committee asked questions in relation to a 40% limit on loans, comparison to
other Tyne and Wear authorities and further details of Treasury Management
advisors. Officers will provide separate responses after the meeting and email
members of the Committee.
RESOLVED -

ASC309

i)

That the information be noted.

ii)

That the recommendations on the Treasury Policy and the
Treasury Strategy be noted and submitted to the Cabinet.

ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER AND NEW VALUE FOR MONEY ARRANGEMENTS
APPROACH
The Committee received the Annual Audit letter from Mazars, which summarised the
work undertaken as the auditor for Gateshead Council. It outlined audit of the
financial statements, other information published alongside the audited financial
statements, the value for money conclusion, statutory reporting and reporting to the
group auditor.
The Committee also received a presentation outlining the new value for money
arrangements approach.
RESOLVED - That the information be noted.

ASC310

DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING
The next meeting will be held on Monday 26 April 2021 at 10.30 am via Teams

Chair……….………………..

Page 6

Agenda Item 4
AUDIT AND STANDARDS
COMMITTEE
26 April 2021

TITLE OF REPORT:

Gateshead Code of Conduct for Councillors

REPORT OF:

Mike Barker, Strategic Director, Corporate
Services and Governance

Purpose of the Report
1.

This report sets out an updated Code of Conduct for the Council and updates
members following a member led working group on amendments to the draft
previously considered by the committee to better reflect the aspiration that
members adhere to the highest standards of conduct. The report makes proposals
in respect of the full Council adopting the updated code.

Background
1. As members will recall, the Localism Act 2011 places a duty on the Council to
promote and maintain high standards of conduct by Councillors and co-opted
Members. It requires the Council to adopt a Code of Conduct in relation to the
conduct of its elected members.
2. The committee have considered the model code on a number of occasions over the
last year, both through its development by the Local Government Association (LGA)
as a consultee and more recently consideration of adopting the mode code in
Gateshead
The Gateshead Approach
3. Through the work of this committee, it has become clear that the aspiration of
members of Gateshead Council is not just to adopt a code that meet basic legal
compliance but instead to aspire to the highest possible standards of conduct.
Consequently, members have explored the options of not only adopting the code
but enhancing it and promoting those high standards of conduct.
4. Following a review of the code at the last meeting of the committee, a member led
working group was established to review in detail the approach to the code and
make further recommendations for consideration by the committee. The work of the
working group has resulted in important new drafting to support and underpin the
rules. A preamble and introduction to the code is now included as part of the draft.
This is very much there to set the scene and articulate that councillors in Gateshead
aspire to meet the highest possible standards of ethical behaviour and conduct. The
preamble now includes a statement that members not only comply with the letter of
the code but also the spirit of the code.
5. The updated code is set out at Appendix 1.

Page
7
1

Promoting Compliance with the Code
6. The code and the set of rules contained within it are not the only part of ensuring
that the highest possible standards are maintained. The committee itself has an
important role in this and as part of the review of the code going forward the
committee will at least annually have the opportunity to review and make
recommendations as to changes that may be required.
Assessment of Complaint Procedures
7. The council has a published complaints procedure and assessment process for
complaints brought under the code. Similarly, to the code, the procedure for
complaints has not changed significantly since then 2012. As members have
indicated they wish to bring the code itself up-to-date and in line with best practice it
would seem a sensible step to take to also review the assessment process for the
complaints themselves. Included at the appendixes are the current assessment
processes (Appendix 2).
8. The use of a working group to go through on a line by line basis the code (which is
not particularly practicable within a full committee meeting) with a view to then
making recommendations back to the committee worked well. It is suggested that
members consider that a similar approach to reviewing the assessment process
would also be a sensible way of working through the detail in order to come up with
some clear recommendations to members of this committee.
Training and Development
9. Another essential element of ensuring high standards is making available to elected
members and officers training in respect of the code. Following the local elections
and subject to full council agreeing to adopt the new code in May (should that be
the recommendation of this committee) then officers will prepare a training package
for the code which will provide members with not only an overview of the rules but
also practical examples of how the code should work in practice. The training
should be designed in such a way to facilitate a discussion of the code and its
application. Members views are sought on whether a recommendation should be
made that the training be part of the mandatory training for members.
Recommendation
10. Audit and Standards Committee are recommended to
a. make a recommendation to the full Council to adopt the model code with the
Gateshead specific amendments including the preamble and introductory
paragraphs
b. consider the existing arrangements for assessment of complaints received
under the code and agree to a member led working group to reviewing these
arrangements and making recommendations to the committee.
c. note that officers will prepare a training package to support the awareness of
the code for both new code and existing members.

Contact: Ged Morton

Ext: 2110

Page
8
2

APPENDIX 1
CODE OF CONDUCT FOR MEMBERS OF GATESHEAD COUNCIL

Preamble
The Council is responsible for a wide and varied range of important services. The
proximity of the Council’s services to local people means that decisions can directly
affect the quality of life of our residents. High standards of conduct within the Council
are therefore necessary at all times to protect the integrity of decision-making,
maintain public confidence, and safeguard local democracy.
Gateshead residents have a high expectation of councillors and the way in which
they should conduct themselves. The Council expects all councillors to meet those
expectations by ensuring that councillor conduct is above reproach. This Code of
Conduct plays a vital role in setting out, openly and clearly, the standards councillors
must apply when undertaking their Council duties (and to an extent in their private
life). It is vital that the Code gives assurance to local people that their elected
members are acting in accordance with the highest ethical standards.

Statement of Councillors
The role of councillor across all tiers of local government is a vital part of our
country’s system of democracy. It is important that as councillors we can be held
accountable and all adopt the behaviours and responsibilities associated with the
role. Our conduct as an individual councillor affects the reputation of all councillors.
We want the role of councillor to be one that people aspire to. We also want
individuals from a range of backgrounds and circumstances to be putting themselves
forward to become councillors.
As councillors, we represent local residents, work to develop better services and
deliver local change. The public have high expectations of us and entrust us to
represent our local area; taking decisions fairly, openly, and transparently. We have
both an individual and collective responsibility to meet these expectations by
maintaining high standards and demonstrating good conduct, and by challenging
behaviour which falls below expectations.
Importantly, we should be able to undertake our role as a councillor without being
intimidated, abused, bullied or threatened by anyone, including the general public.
This Code has been designed to protect our democratic role, encourage good
conduct and safeguard the public’s trust in local government.

The Principles of Public Life
The Seven Principles of Public Life (also known as the Nolan Principles) apply to
anyone who works as a public office-holder. This includes all those who are elected

Page 9

or appointed to public office, nationally and locally, and all people appointed to work
in the Civil Service, local government, the police, courts and probation services, nondepartmental public bodies (NDPBs), and in the health, education, social and care
services. All public office-holders are both servants of the public and stewards of
public resources. The principles also apply to all those in other sectors delivering
public services.
Selflessness
Holders of public office should act solely in terms of the public interest.
Integrity
Holders of public office must avoid placing themselves under any obligation to
people or organisations that might try inappropriately to influence them in their
work. They should not act or take decisions in order to gain financial or other
material benefits for themselves, their family, or their friends. They must declare
and resolve any interests and relationships.
Objectivity
Holders of public office must act and take decisions impartially, fairly and on
merit, using the best evidence and without discrimination or bias.
Accountability
Holders of public office are accountable to the public for their decisions and
actions and must submit themselves to the scrutiny necessary to ensure this.
Openness
Holders of public office should act and take decisions in an open and
transparent manner. Information should not be withheld from the public unless
there are clear and lawful reasons for so doing.
Honesty
Holders of public office should be truthful.
Leadership
Holders of public office should exhibit these principles in their own behaviour.
They should actively promote and robustly support the principles and be willing
to challenge poor behaviour wherever it occurs.

Approach to Compliance with the Code of Conduct
The Council expects councillors to comply with the spirit and not just the letter of the
Code of Conduct.

Page 10

Definitions
For the purposes of this Code of Conduct, a “councillor” means a member or coopted
member of a local authority or a directly elected mayor. A “co-opted member” is
defined in the Localism Act 2011 Section 27(4) as “a person who is not a member of
the authority but who
a) is a member of any committee or sub-committee of the authority, or;
b) is a member of, and represents the authority on, any joint committee or joint
sub-committee of the authority;
and who is entitled to vote on any question that falls to be decided at any meeting of
that committee or sub-committee”.
For the purposes of this Code of Conduct, “local authority” includes county councils,
district councils, London borough councils, parish councils, town councils, fire and
rescue authorities, police authorities, joint authorities, economic prosperity boards,
combined authorities and National Park authorities.

Purpose of the Code of Conduct
The purpose of this Code of Conduct is to assist you, as a councillor, in modelling
the behaviour that is expected of you, to provide a personal check and balance, and
to set out the type of conduct that could lead to action being taken against you. It is
also to protect you, the public, fellow councillors, local authority officers and the
reputation of local government. It sets out general principles of conduct expected of
all councillors and your specific obligations in relation to standards of conduct. The
LGA encourages the use of support, training and mediation prior to action being
taken using the Code. The fundamental aim of the Code is to create and maintain
public confidence in the role of councillor and local government.

General principles of councillor conduct
Everyone in public office at all levels; all who serve the public or deliver public
services, including ministers, civil servants, councillors and local authority officers;
should uphold the Seven Principles of Public Life, also known as the Nolan
Principles.
Building on these principles, the following general principles have been developed
specifically for the role of councillor.
In accordance with the public trust placed in me, on all occasions:
•
•
•
•

I act with integrity and honesty
I act lawfully
I treat all persons fairly and with respect; and
I lead by example and act in a way that secures public confidence in the role
of councillor.

Page 11

In undertaking my role:
•
•
•
•
•

I impartially exercise my responsibilities in the interests of the local community
I do not improperly seek to confer an advantage, or disadvantage, on any
person
I avoid conflicts of interest
I exercise reasonable care and diligence; and
I ensure that public resources are used prudently in accordance with my local
authority’s requirements and in the public interest.

Application of the Code of Conduct
This Code of Conduct applies to you as soon as you sign your declaration of
acceptance of the office of councillor or attend your first meeting as a co-opted
member and continues to apply to you until you cease to be a councillor.
This Code of Conduct applies to you when:
•

you are acting in your capacity as a councillor and/or as a representative of
your council

•

you are claiming to act as a councillor and/or as a representative of your
council

•

you are giving the impression that you are acting as a councillor and/or as a
representative of your council

•

you refer publicly to your role as a councillor or use knowledge you could only
obtain in your role as a councillor.

The Code applies to all forms of communication and interaction, including:
•

at face-to-face meetings

•

at online or telephone meetings

•

in written communication

•

in verbal communication

•

in non-verbal communication

•

in electronic and social media communication, posts, statements and
comments.

You are also expected to uphold high standards of conduct and show leadership at
all times.
Your Monitoring Officer has statutory responsibility for the implementation of the
Code of Conduct, and you are encouraged to seek advice from your Monitoring
Officer on any matters that may relate to the Code of Conduct. Town and parish
councillors are encouraged to seek advice from their Clerk, who may refer matters to
the Monitoring Officer.

Page 12

Standards of councillor conduct
This section sets out your obligations, which are the minimum standards of conduct
required of you as a councillor. Should your conduct fall short of these standards, a
complaint may be made against you, which may result in action being taken.
Guidance is included to help explain the reasons for the obligations and how they
should be followed.
General Conduct
1. Respect
As a councillor:
1.1 I treat other councillors and members of the public with respect. I can
express, challenge, criticise and disagree with views, ideas, opinions
and policies in a robust but civil manner. I will not, however, subject
individuals, groups of people or organisations to personal attack.
1.2 I treat local authority employees, employees and representatives of
partner organisations and those volunteering for the local authority with
respect and respect the role they play.
Respect means politeness and courtesy in behaviour, speech, and in the written
word. Debate and having different views are all part of a healthy democracy. As a
councillor, you can express, challenge, criticise and disagree with views, ideas,
opinions and policies in a robust but civil manner. You should not, however, subject
individuals, groups of people or organisations to personal attack.
In your contact with the public, you should treat them politely and courteously. Rude
and offensive behaviour lowers the public’s expectations and confidence in
councillors.
In return, you have a right to expect respectful behaviour from the public. If members
of the public are being abusive, intimidatory or threatening you are entitled to stop
any conversation or interaction in person or online and report them to the local
authority, the relevant social media provider or the police. This also applies to fellow
councillors, where action could then be taken under the Councillor Code of Conduct,
and local authority employees, where concerns should be raised in line with the local
authority’s councillor-officer protocol.
2. Bullying, harassment and discrimination As
a councillor:
2.1 I do not bully any person.
2.2 I do not harass any person.

Page 13

2.3 I promote equalities and do not discriminate unlawfully against any
person.
The Advisory, Conciliation and Arbitration Service (ACAS) characterises bullying as
offensive, intimidating, malicious or insulting behaviour, an abuse or misuse of power
through means that undermine, humiliate, denigrate or injure the recipient. Bullying
might be a regular pattern of behaviour or a one-off incident, happen face-to-face, on
social media, in emails or phone calls, happen in the workplace or at work social
events and may not always be obvious or noticed by others.
The Protection from Harassment Act 1997 defines harassment as conduct that
causes alarm or distress or puts people in fear of violence and must involve such
conduct on at least two occasions. It can include repeated attempts to impose
unwanted communications and contact upon a person in a manner that could be
expected to cause distress or fear in any reasonable person.
Unlawful discrimination is where someone is treated unfairly because of a protected
characteristic. Protected characteristics are specific aspects of a person's identity
defined by the Equality Act 2010. They are age, disability, gender reassignment,
marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex
and sexual orientation.
The Equality Act 2010 places specific duties on local authorities. Councillors have a
central role to play in ensuring that equality issues are integral to the local authority's
performance and strategic aims, and that there is a strong vision and public
commitment to equality across public services.
3. Impartiality of officers of the council As a
councillor:
3.1 I do not compromise, or attempt to compromise, the impartiality of
anyone who works for, or on behalf of, the local authority.
Officers work for the local authority as a whole and must be politically neutral (unless
they are political assistants). They should not be coerced or persuaded to act in a
way that would undermine their neutrality. You can question officers in order to
understand, for example, their reasons for proposing to act in a particular way, or the
content of a report that they have written. However, you must not try and force them
to act differently, change their advice, or alter the content of that report, if doing so
would prejudice their professional integrity.
4. Confidentiality and access to information
As a councillor:
4.1 I do not disclose information:
a. given to me in confidence by anyone
b. acquired by me which I believe, or ought reasonably to be
aware, is of a confidential nature, unless

Page 14

i.

I have received the consent of a person authorised to
give it;
ii. I am required by law to do so;
iii. the disclosure is made to a third party for the purpose of
obtaining professional legal advice provided that the third
party agrees not to disclose the information to any other
person; or
iv. the disclosure is:
1. reasonable and in the public interest; and
2. made in good faith and in compliance with the
reasonable requirements of the local authority; and
3. I have consulted the Monitoring Officer prior to its
release.
4.2 I do not improperly use knowledge gained solely as a result of my role
as a councillor for the advancement of myself, my friends, my family
members, my employer or my business interests.
4.3 I do not prevent anyone from getting information that they are entitled
to by law.
Local authorities must work openly and transparently, and their proceedings and
printed materials are open to the public, except in certain legally defined
circumstances. You should work on this basis, but there will be times when it is
required by law that discussions, documents and other information relating to or held
by the local authority must be treated in a confidential manner. Examples include
personal data relating to individuals or information relating to ongoing negotiations.
5. Disrepute
As a councillor:
5.1 I do not bring my role or local authority into disrepute.
As a councillor, you are trusted to make decisions on behalf of your community and
your actions and behaviour are subject to greater scrutiny than that of ordinary
members of the public. You should be aware that your actions might have an
adverse impact on you, other councillors and/or your local authority and may lower
the public’s confidence in your or your local authority’s ability to discharge your/it’s
functions. For example, behaviour that is considered dishonest and/or deceitful can
bring your local authority into disrepute.
You are able to hold the local authority and fellow councillors to account and are able
to constructively challenge and express concern about decisions and processes
undertaken by the council whilst continuing to adhere to other aspects of this Code of
Conduct.
6. Use of position As a councillor:

Page 15

6.1 I do not use, or attempt to use, my position improperly to the advantage
or disadvantage of myself or anyone else.
Your position as a member of the local authority provides you with certain
opportunities, responsibilities and privileges, and you make choices all the time that
will impact others. However, you should not take advantage of these opportunities to
further your own or others’ private interests or to disadvantage anyone unfairly.
7. Use of local authority resources and
facilities As a councillor:
7.1 I do not misuse council resources.
7.2 I will, when using the resources of the local or authorising their use by
others:
a.
act in accordance with the local authority's requirements; and
b.
ensure that such resources are not used for political purposes
unless that use could reasonably be regarded as likely to
facilitate, or be conducive to, the discharge of the functions of the
local authority or of the office to which I have been elected or
appointed.
You may be provided with resources and facilities by the local authority to assist you
in carrying out your duties as a councillor.
Examples include:
•
•
•
•
•

office support
stationery
equipment such as phones, and computers
transport
access and use of local authority buildings and rooms.

These are given to you to help you carry out your role as a councillor more effectively
and are not to be used for business or personal gain. They should be used in
accordance with the purpose for which they have been provided and the local
authority’s own policies regarding their use.
8. Complying with the Code of Conduct As a
councillor:
8.1 I undertake Code of Conduct training provided by my local authority.
8.2 I cooperate with
determination.

any

Code

of

Conduct

investigation

and/or

8.3 I do not intimidate or attempt to intimidate any person who is likely to
be involved with the administration of any investigation or proceedings.

Page 16

8.4 I comply with any sanction imposed on me following a finding that I
have breached the Code of Conduct.
It is extremely important for you as a councillor to demonstrate high standards, for
you to have your actions open to scrutiny and for you not to undermine public trust in
the local authority or its governance. If you do not understand or are concerned
about the local authority’s processes in handling a complaint you should raise this
with your Monitoring Officer.
Protecting your reputation and the reputation of the local authority
9. Interests
As a councillor:
9.1 I register and declare my interests.
You need to register your interests so that the public, local authority employees and
fellow councillors know which of your interests might give rise to a conflict of interest.
The register is a public document that can be consulted when (or before) an issue
arises. The register also protects you by allowing you to demonstrate openness and
a willingness to be held accountable. You are personally responsible for deciding
whether or not you should declare an interest in a meeting, but it can be helpful for
you to know early on if others think that a potential conflict might arise. It is also
important that the public know about any interest that might have to be declared by
you or other councillors when making or taking part in decisions, so that decision
making is seen by the public as open and honest. This helps to ensure that public
confidence in the integrity of local governance is maintained.
You should note that failure to register or declare a disclosable pecuniary (i.e.
financial) interest is a criminal offence under the Localism Act 2011.
The Appendix sets out the detailed provisions on registering and declaring interests.
If in doubt, you should always seek advice from your Monitoring Officer.
10. Gifts and hospitality As a councillor:
10.1
I do not accept gifts or hospitality, irrespective of estimated value,
which could give rise to real or substantive personal gain or a
reasonable suspicion of influence on my part to show favour from
persons seeking to acquire, develop or do business with the local
authority or from persons who may apply to the local authority for any
permission, licence or other significant advantage.
10.2
I register with the Monitoring Officer any gift or hospitality with an
estimated value of at least £50 within 28 days of its receipt.
10.3
I register with the Monitoring Officer any significant gift or
hospitality that I have been offered but have refused to accept.

Page 17

In order to protect your position and the reputation of the local authority, you should
exercise caution in accepting any gifts or hospitality which are (or which you
reasonably believe to be) offered to you because you are a councillor. The
presumption should always be not to accept significant gifts or hospitality. However,
there may be times when such a refusal may be difficult if it is seen as rudeness in
which case you could accept it but must ensure it is publicly registered. However,
you do not need to register gifts and hospitality which are not related to your role as
a councillor, such as Christmas gifts from your friends and family. It is also important
to note that it is appropriate to accept normal expenses and hospitality associated
with your duties as a councillor. If you are unsure, do contact your Monitoring Officer
for guidance.

Appendix
Appendix A – The Seven Principles of Public Life The
principles are:
Selflessness
Holders of public office should act solely in terms of the public interest.
Integrity
Holders of public office must avoid placing themselves under any obligation to
people or organisations that might try inappropriately to influence them in their work.
They should not act or take decisions in order to gain financial or other material
benefits for themselves, their family, or their friends. They must declare and resolve
any interests and relationships.
Objectivity
Holders of public office must act and take decisions impartially, fairly and on merit,
using the best evidence and without discrimination or bias.
Accountability
Holders of public office are accountable to the public for their decisions and actions
and must submit themselves to the scrutiny necessary to ensure this.
Openness
Holders of public office should act and take decisions in an open and transparent
manner. Information should not be withheld from the public unless there are clear
and lawful reasons for so doing.
Honesty
Holders of public office should be truthful.
Leadership

Page 18

Holders of public office should exhibit these principles in their own behaviour. They
should actively promote and robustly support the principles and be willing to
challenge poor behaviour wherever it occurs.
Registering interests
1. Within 28 days of this Code of Conduct being adopted by the local authority or
your election or appointment to office (where that is later) you must register
with the Monitoring Officer the interests which fall within the categories set out
in Table 1 (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) and Table 2 (Other Registerable
Interests). Disclosable Pecuniary Interests means issues relating to money
and finances.
2. You must ensure that your register of interests is kept up-to-date and within
28 days of becoming aware of any new interest, or of any change to a
registered interest, notify the Monitoring Officer.
3. A ‘sensitive interest’ is as an interest which, if disclosed, could lead to the
councillor/member or co-opted member, or a person connected with the
member or co-opted member, being subject to violence or intimidation.
4. Where you have a ‘sensitive interest’ you must notify the Monitoring Officer
with the reasons why you believe it is a sensitive interest. If the Monitoring
Officer agrees they will withhold the interest from the public register.
Declaring interests
5. Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates one of your
Disclosable Pecuniary Interests, you must declare the interest, not participate
in any discussion or vote on the matter and must not remain in the room
unless you have been granted a dispensation. If it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you
do not have to declare the nature of the interest, just that you have an
interest.
6. Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to one of your Other
Registerable Interests, you must declare the interest. You may speak on the
matter only if members of the public are also allowed to speak at the meeting
but otherwise must not take part in any discussion or vote on the matter and
must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a dispensation. If
it is a ‘sensitive interest’, again you do not have to declare the nature of the
interest.
7. Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to your financial
interest or well-being (and is not a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest) or a
financial interest or well-being of a relative or close associate, you must
declare the interest. You may speak on the matter only if members of the

Page 19

public are also allowed to speak at the meeting but otherwise must not take
part in any discussion or vote on the matter and must not remain in the room
unless you have been granted a dispensation. If it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you
do not have to declare the nature of the interest.
8. Where a matter arises at a meeting which affects –
a. your own financial interest or well-being;
b. a financial interest or well-being of a friend, relative, close associate; or
c. a body included in those you need to declare under Disclosable
Pecuniary Interests you must disclose the interest.
9. Where the matter affects the financial interest or well-being:
a. to a greater extent than it affects the financial interests of the majority
of inhabitants of the ward affected by the decision and;
b. a reasonable member of the public knowing all the facts would believe
that it would affect your view of the wider public interest
you must declare the interest. You may speak on the matter only if members
of the public are also allowed to speak at the meeting but otherwise must not
take part in any discussion or vote on the matter and must not remain in the
room unless you have been granted a dispensation. If it is a ‘sensitive
interest’, you do not have to declare the nature of the interest.

Table 1: Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
This table sets out the explanation of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests as set out in
the Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012.
Subject
Employment,
office,
profession or vocation

Sponsorship

Description
employment,
office,
trade,
trade, Any
profession or vocation carried on for
profit or gain.
[Any unpaid directorship.]
Any payment or provision of any other
financial benefit (other than from the
council) made to the councillor during
the previous 12-month period for
expenses incurred by him/her in
carrying out his/her duties as a
councillor, or towards his/her election
expenses.
This includes any payment or financial
benefit from a trade union within the
meaning of the Trade Union and Labour
Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992.

Page 20

Contracts

Land and Property

Licences

Corporate tenancies

Any contract made between the
councillor or his/her spouse or civil
partner or the person with whom the
councillor is living as if they were
spouses/civil partners (or a firm in which
such person is a partner, or an
incorporated body of which such person
is a director* or a body that such person
has a beneficial interest in the securities
of*) and the council —
(a)
under which goods or services
are to be provided or works are to be
executed; and
(b)
which has not been fully
discharged.
Any beneficial interest in land which is
within the area of the council.
‘Land’ excludes an easement, servitude,
interest or right in or over land which
does not give the councillor or his/her
spouse or civil partner or the person
with whom the councillor is living as if
they were spouses/ civil partners (alone
or jointly with another) a right to occupy
or to receive income.
Any licence (alone or jointly with others)
to occupy land in the area of the council
for a month or longer
Any tenancy where (to the councillor’s
knowledge)—
(a) the landlord is the council; and (b)
the tenant is a body that the councillor,
or his/her spouse or civil partner or the
person with whom the councillor is
living as if they were spouses/ civil
partners is a partner of or a director* of
or has a beneficial interest in the
securities* of.

Page 21

Any beneficial interest in securities* of a
body where—
(a)
that body (to the councillor’s
knowledge) has a place of business or
land in the area of the council; and
(b)
either—
(i)
the total nominal value of the
securities* exceeds £25,000 or one
hundredth of the total issued share
capital of that body; or
(ii)
if the share capital of that body is
of more than one class, the total nominal
value of the shares of any one class in
which the councillor, or his/ her spouse
or civil partner or the person with whom
the councillor is living as if they were
spouses/civil partners has a beneficial
interest exceeds one hundredth of the
total issued share capital of that class.

Securities

*
‘director’ includes a member of the committee of management of an industrial
and provident society.
*
‘securities’ means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds,
units of a collective investment scheme within the meaning of the Financial Services
and Markets Act 2000 and other securities of any description, other than money
deposited with a building society.
Table 2: Other Registerable Interests
Any Body of which you are a member or in a position of general control or
management and to which you are appointed or nominated by the council;
Any Body (a) exercising functions of a public
nature;
(b) directed to charitable purposes; or
(c) one of whose principal purposes
includes the influence of public opinion
or policy (including any political party or
trade union)
of which you are a member or in a position of general control or management.
Appendix C – the Committee on Standards in Public Life
The LGA has undertaken this review whilst the Government continues to consider
the recommendations made by the Committee on Standards in Public Life in their

Page 22

report on Local Government Ethical Standards. If the Government chooses to
implement any of the recommendations, this could require a change to this Code.
The recommendations cover:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Recommendations for changes to the Localism Act 2011 to clarify in law when
the Code of Conduct applies
The introduction of sanctions
An appeals process through the Local Government Ombudsman
Changes to the Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests)
Regulations 2012
Updates to the Local Government Transparency Code
Changes to the role and responsibilities of the Independent Person
That the criminal offences in the Localism Act 2011 relating to Disclosable
Pecuniary Interests should be abolished

The Local Government Ethical Standards report also includes Best Practice
recommendations. These are:
Best practice 1: Local authorities should include prohibitions on bullying and
harassment in codes of conduct. These should include a definition of bullying and
harassment, supplemented with a list of examples of the sort of behaviour covered
by such a definition.
Best practice 2: Councils should include provisions in their code of conduct requiring
councillors to comply with any formal standards investigation and prohibiting trivial or
malicious allegations by councillors.
Best practice 3: Principal authorities should review their code of conduct each year
and regularly seek, where possible, the views of the public, community organisations
and neighbouring authorities.
Best practice 4: An authority’s code should be readily accessible to both councillors
and the public, in a prominent position on a council’s website and available in council
premises.
Best practice 5: Local authorities should update their gifts and hospitality register at
least once per quarter, and publish it in an accessible format, such as CSV.
Best practice 6: Councils should publish a clear and straightforward public interest
test against which allegations are filtered.
Best practice 7: Local authorities should have access to at least two Independent
Persons.
Best practice 8: An Independent Person should be consulted as to whether to
undertake a formal investigation on an allegation, and should be given the option to
review and comment on allegations which the responsible officer is minded to
dismiss as being without merit, vexatious, or trivial.

Page 23

Best practice 9: Where a local authority makes a decision on an allegation of
misconduct following a formal investigation, a decision notice should be published as
soon as possible on its website, including a brief statement of facts, the provisions of
the code engaged by the allegations, the view of the Independent Person, the
reasoning of the decision-maker, and any sanction applied.
Best practice 10: A local authority should have straightforward and accessible
guidance on its website on how to make a complaint under the code of conduct, the
process for handling complaints, and estimated timescales for investigations and
outcomes.
Best practice 11: Formal standards complaints about the conduct of a parish
councillor towards a clerk should be made by the chair or by the parish council as a
whole, rather than the clerk in all but exceptional circumstances.
Best practice 12: Monitoring Officers’ roles should include providing advice, support
and management of investigations and adjudications on alleged breaches to parish
councils within the remit of the principal authority. They should be provided with
adequate training, corporate support and resources to undertake this work.
Best practice 13: A local authority should have procedures in place to address any
conflicts of interest when undertaking a standards investigation. Possible steps
should include asking the Monitoring Officer from a different authority to undertake
the investigation.
Best practice 14: Councils should report on separate bodies they have set up or
which they own as part of their annual governance statement and give a full picture
of their relationship with those bodies. Separate bodies created by local authorities
should abide by the Nolan principle of openness and publish their board agendas
and minutes and annual reports in an accessible place.
Best practice 15: Senior officers should meet regularly with political group leaders or
group whips to discuss standards issues.

The LGA has committed to reviewing the Code on an annual basis to ensure it is still
fit for purpose.

Page 24

APPENDIX 2
GATESHEAD COUNCIL
Arrangements for Dealing with Allegations of Breaches of the Code of Conduct for
Members and Co-opted Members
1.

Introduction

These arrangements set out how the Gateshead Council (‘the Council’) will deal with a
complaint that an elected or co-opted Member of the Council has failed to comply with the
Council’s Code of Conduct.
Under Section 28 of the Localism Act 2011, the Council must have in place
“arrangements” under which allegations that a Member or Co-opted Member of the
Council or a Committee or Sub-committee of the Council, has failed to comply with the
Code of Conduct can be investigated and decisions made on such allegations. Such
arrangements must provide for the Council to appoint at least one Independent Person,
whose views must be sought by the Council before it takes a decision on an allegation
which it has decided shall be investigated, and whose views can be sought by the Council
at any other stage.
The Council has appointed one Independent Person.
2.

Receipt of a complaint

A complaint against a Member or Co-opted Member should be sent by the Complainant in
writing or by email to:
The Monitoring Officer
Gateshead Council
Civic Centre
Regent Street
Gateshead
NE8 1HH
Or email: mikebarker@gateshead.gov.uk
The Monitoring Officer has statutory responsibility for maintaining the register of members’
interests and is responsible for administering the system in respect of complaints of
member misconduct.
The Monitoring Officer will acknowledge receipt of the complaint to the Complainant and
provide the subject member of the complaint, with a copy of the complaint within 5 working
days of receiving it, and will keep all parties informed of the progress of the complaint.
The Monitoring Officer will also seek comments from the subject member of the complaint
to assist in the initial assessment of the complaint.
3.

Request for confidentiality

If a Complainant wants to keep their name and address confidential, they are required to
indicate this when they submit their complaint. The Council will not normally investigate
anonymous complaints, unless there is a clear public interest in doing so.

Page 25

To ensure openness and transparency confidentiality will only be granted in exceptional
circumstances and in many instances it would not be practical or possible to investigate a
complaint without the identity of the complainant being revealed. If, however,
confidentiality is granted and the complaint proceeds the Monitoring Officer will determine
whether or when the subject member will be advised of the complaint and the identity of
the Complainant. The procedure set out below will be adjusted as appropriate to
accommodate the decision of the Monitoring Officer.
Where a request for confidentiality is refused by the Monitoring Officer, the Complainant
will be advised of that refusal and will be given the option to withdraw the complaint within
7 working days. If the complaint is withdrawn the matter will be then closed and the
subject member will not be informed of the complaint. If the Complainant refuses to
withdraw the complaint or does not respond within the specified timescale, then the
subject member will be sent a copy of the complaint and the complaint will proceed as set
out below.
4.

Will the complaint be investigated?

The Monitoring Officer will review every complaint received and decide whether the
complaint will be investigated. The decision will be based on whether the allegation, if
proved, would constitute a failure to observe the Code of Conduct and the application of
the Council’s adopted assessment criteria (attached at Annex 1). This decision will
normally be taken within 28 days of receipt of the complaint. The parties will be advised of
the Monitoring Officer’s decision together with the reasons for that decision – subject to
any decision on confidentiality arising as referred to above.
Where the Monitoring Officer requires additional information in order to come to a decision,
he/she may go back to the Complainant for such information, and may request information
from the subject member of the complaint.
If the complaint identifies criminal conduct or breach of other regulation by any person, the
Monitoring Officer may refer the complaint to the Police or other regulatory agencies
irrespective of a request for confidentiality by the Complainant.
5.

Informal Resolution

The Monitoring Officer may consider that a complaint can be reasonably resolved
informally. In such a case, the Monitoring Officer will consult with the subject member and
the Complainant (along with the Independent Person if the Monitoring Officer thinks it is
appropriate) to seek to agree a fair resolution of the complaint which also helps to ensure
high standards of conduct for the future. If the subject member complies with the
suggested resolution, the Monitoring Officer will report the matter to the Audit and
Standards Committee (‘the Committee’) for information, but will take no further action.

6.

How is the investigation conducted?

If the Monitoring Officer decides that a complaint merits formal investigation, he/she will
appoint an Investigating Officer. The Investigating Officer may be another officer of the
Council or an external investigator.

Page 26

The Investigating Officer will write to the subject member and will ask them to provide their
explanation of events, and to identify what documents or other materials they believe the
Investigating Officer needs to see and who to interview.
The Investigating Officer will decide whether he/she needs to meet or speak to the
Complainant to understand the nature of the complaint and so that the Complainant can
explain their understanding of events and suggest what documents or other materials the
Investigating Officer needs to see, and who the Investigating Officer needs to interview.
At the end of his/her investigation, the Investigating Officer will produce a draft report and
will send copies of that draft report, in confidence, to the subject member and to the
Complainant, to give both an opportunity to identify any matter in that draft report which
they disagree with or which they consider requires more consideration. A copy of the draft
report will also be sent to the Monitoring Officer.
Having received and taken account of any comments which the Complainant or subject
member may make on the draft report, the Investigating Officer will send his/her final
report to the Monitoring Officer.
7.

What happens if the Investigating Officer concludes that there is no evidence
of a failure to comply with the Code of Conduct?

An Audit and Standards (Investigations and Hearings) Sub-Committee (‘the SubCommittee’) will be convened.
The Sub-Committee will review the Investigating Officer’s report and, if they are satisfied
that the Investigating Officer’s report is sufficient and they agree that there is no evidence
of a failure to comply with the Code of Conduct, they will instruct the Monitoring Officer to
write to the subject member and to the Complainant, notifying both that they are satisfied
that no further action is required, and give both a copy of the Investigating Officer’s final
report.
If the Sub-Committee do not agree with the conclusion that there is no evidence of a
failure to comply with the Code of Conduct they will refer the matter for a hearing before
the Sub-Committee.
In considering the report, the Sub-Committee will consult with the Council’s Independent
Person.
If the Sub-Committee is not satisfied that the investigation has been conducted properly,
they may ask the Investigating Officer to reconsider his/her report. Upon the receipt of the
report back from the Investigating Officer, the Committee will consider whether to accept
the report or refer it to a hearing.

8.

What happens if the Investigating Officer concludes that there is evidence of
a failure to comply with the Code of Conduct?

a) Local Resolution
Where the Investigating Officer concludes that there is evidence of a failure to comply
with the Code of Conduct, there may still be an opportunity for local resolution,

Page 27

avoiding the necessity of a hearing. An investigation report may cause a member to
recognise that his/her conduct was at least capable of giving offence, and /or identify
other appropriate remedial action, and the Complainant may be satisfied for instance,
by recognition of fault or an apology. It would only be appropriate for the Monitoring
Officer to agree a local resolution at this stage after consultation with the Council’s
Independent Person and the Chair of the Committee. In addition, this would be
conditional on the Complainant being satisfied with the outcome. A summary report
on any local resolution of a complaint would be reported to the Committee for
information.
b) Referral for Hearing
If local resolution was not possible, the Monitoring Officer will then refer the matter for
a hearing before the Sub-Committee.
9.

The Hearing
Where the Sub-Committee has referred a matter for a hearing the procedure at
Annex 2 will apply.

10.

What action can the Audit and Standards Committee take where a member
has failed to comply with the Code of Conduct?
Gateshead Council has delegated to the Committee such of its powers to take
action in respect of individual members as may be necessary to promote and
maintain high standards of conduct. Any action will be taken following a
recommendation from the Sub-Committee.
Accordingly the Committee may –
a)
b)
c)
d)
e)
f)

g)
h)

11.

Issue a formal censure;
Refer the determination findings to the Council for information;
Make publication of the determination findings by such means as thought fit;
Request the Council to remove the member from being the Chair or Vice
Chair of any Committee or Sub-committee
Request the Council remove them from any or all Committees or Subcommittees for a specified period;
Request the Council to remove the Member for a specified time from all or
specified outside appointments to which s/he has been appointed or
nominated by the Council.
Offer training to the member; or
Exclude the member from the Council’s offices or other premises or facilities,
for a specified period and to the extent desirable and so as not to interfere
with the democratic process, in particular the member’s ability to carry out his
or her role as an elected member.

What happens at the end of the Hearing?
At the end of the hearing, the Chair will state the decision of the Sub-Committee as
to whether a member has failed to comply with the Code of Conduct and as to any
actions which the Sub-Committee is recommending that the Committee should

Page 28

take. A report will then be taken to the Committee setting out the results of the
investigation, the findings of the Sub-Committee and recommended action.
As soon as reasonably practicable after the Committee decision, the Monitoring
Officer in consultation with the Chair of the Committee, will prepare a formal
decision notice, and send a copy to the Member and the Complainant, make that
decision notice available for public inspection on the Council’s website and, if so
directed by the Audit and Standards Committee, report the decision to the next
convenient meeting of the Council.
12.

Review of decisions
Procedures for the review of decisions are set out in Annex 3.

13.

What is the Audit and Standards Committee?
The Committee is made consists of seven councillors and three co-opted members.
The Committee is a key component of the Council’s corporate governance
arrangements and is responsible (amongst other things) for the promotion and
maintenance of high standards of conduct by its elected and co-opted members.
The full terms of reference for the committee can be found in the Constitution.

14.

What is the Audit and Standards (Investigations and Hearings) SubCommittee?
The Sub-Committee will be convened to deal with the complaints and investigations
duties set out in these arrangements. When appropriate, the Monitoring Office, in
consultation with the Chair of the Committee, will select from the membership of the
Committee, three elected members and one independent member to constitute the
Sub-Committee.

15.

Who is the Independent Person?
The Independent Person has applied for the post following advertisement of a
vacancy for the role, and is appointed by the Council.
The Independent Person is invited to attend meetings of the Committee and their
views are sought and taken into consideration before the Committee takes any
decision on whether a Member’s conduct constitutes a failure to comply with the
Code of Conduct and as to any action to be taken following a finding of failure to
comply with the Code of Conduct.
The Independent Person does not have voting rights on the Committee or SubCommittee. Their role is an advisory one.

16.

Revision of these arrangements
The Committee or Sub-Committee, on the advice of the Monitoring Officer, may
depart from these arrangements where it is necessary to do so in order to secure
the effective and fair consideration of any matter. The arrangements will also be
subject to periodic review by the Council.

Page 29

Annex 1
Assessment criteria for complaints against councillors
The following criteria will be taken into account in deciding what action, if any, to take:
1.

Has the complainant submitted enough information to satisfy the Monitoring
Officer (or the Audit and Standards Committee if appropriate) that the
complaint should be referred for investigation or other action?
If not:
The information provided is insufficient to make a decision. So unless, or until, further
information is received, no further action will be taken on the complaint.

2.

Is the complaint about someone who is no longer a member of the Council, but
is a member of another authority? If so, should the complaint be referred to the
monitoring officer of that other authority?
If yes:
The complaint will be referred to the monitoring officer of that other authority to
consider.

3.

Has the complaint already been the subject of an investigation or other action
relating to the Code of Conduct? Similarly, has the complaint been the subject
of an investigation by other regulatory authorities?
If yes:
There may be nothing more to be gained by further action being taken.

4.

Is the complaint about something which happened so long ago that there
would be little benefit in taking action now?
If yes:
Further action may not be warranted.

5.

Does the complaint appear too trivial to justify the cost or inconvenience of
further action?
If yes:
Further action will not be warranted.

6.

Does the complaint appear to be simply malicious, politically motivated or titfor-tat?
If yes:
Further action will not normally be warranted.

7.

Is the complaint anonymous?
If yes:
No action will normally be taken unless there are compelling reasons to suggest
otherwise, e.g. if it includes documentary or photographic evidence indicating an
exceptionally serious or significant matter.

Page 30

Annex 2
Procedure for Hearings
1.

Introduction

This Annex details the procedure to be adopted for the hearing of complaints by the SubCommittee where an investigation has been completed.
The person(s) making the complaint will be referred to in this procedure as the
Complainant and the person against whom the complaint is made will be referred to as the
Member.
The Investigating Officer means the Monitoring Officer or other person appointed by the
Monitoring Officer to conduct a local investigation in relation to a matter referred to the
Monitoring Officer for local investigation.
References to Monitoring Officer include any other person appointed by the Monitoring
Officer to carry out the functions of the Monitoring Officer.
2.

Legal Advice to the Governance Committee

Where the Monitoring Officer also takes the role of the Investigating Officer, he/she must
arrange for a separate legal adviser for the Sub-Committee in respect of the allegation.
3.

Notifying the Subject-Member and Complainant

The Monitoring Officer shall send a copy of the Investigating Officer’s final report to the
Subject-Member, the Complainant and the Independent Person.
The Monitoring Officer will ask for a written response from the Member within 14 days,
stating whether or not s/he:







disagrees with any of the findings of fact in the report, including the reasons for any
disagreements;
wants to be represented, at his/her own expense, at the hearing by a solicitor, barrister
or any other person;
wants to give evidence to the Sub-Committee, either verbally or in writing;
wants to call relevant witnesses to give evidence to the Sub-Committee;
wants any part of the hearing to be held in private; or
wants any part of the report or other relevant documents to be withheld from the public.

The Monitoring Officer will also inform the Member that if, at the meeting of the SubCommittee, s/he seeks to dispute any matter contained in the report, without having
previously notified his/her intention to do so, the Sub-Committee may either adjourn the
meeting to enable the Investigating Officer to provide a response, or refuse to allow the
disputed matter to be raised.
The Monitoring Officer will also seek the views of the Independent Person on the report
and on any action the Independent Person feels should be taken in respect of it.
Upon receipt of the responses, the Monitoring Officer will discuss the responses with the
Chair of the Sub-Committee and will complete a pre-hearing summary which will include:

Page 31

a) The name of the Member.
b) The name of the complainant (unless there are good reasons to keep his/her
identity confidential).
c) The case reference number.
d) The name of the Chair for the hearing.
e) The name of the Investigating Officer.
f) The name of the clerk of the hearing or other administrative officer.
g) The date the pre-hearing summary was produced.
h) The date, time and place of the hearing.
i) A summary of the complaint.
j) The relevant section or sections of the Code of Conduct.
k) The findings of fact in the investigation report which are agreed and the findings of
fact in the investigation report which are not agreed.
l) Whether the Member or the Investigating Officer will attend or be represented.
m) The names of any witnesses who will be asked to give evidence.
n) An outline of the proposed procedure for the hearing.
The Member and the Investigating Officer are entitled to request that any witnesses they
want should be called. However, the Chair of the Sub-Committee, following advice from
the legal adviser, may limit the number of witnesses, if he/she believes the number
requested is unreasonable or that some witnesses will simply be repeating the evidence of
earlier witnesses, or else will not provide evidence that will assist the Committee to reach
its decision.
Nothing in this procedure shall limit the Chair of the Sub-Committee from requesting the
attendance of any additional witnesses whose evidence he/she considers would assist the
Sub-Committee to reach its decision.
4.

The Sub-Committee

The Sub-Committee shall decide, on the balance of probability, whether the grounds of the
complaint are upheld. It shall do so by considering the report and, where appropriate,
written or oral representations made by the Member, and any additional relevant
information from the Investigating Officer or witnesses.
Each Sub-Committee member shall have one vote, and all matters/issues shall be decided
by a simple majority of votes cast.

Page 32

The meeting of the Sub-Committee will be open to the public and press unless confidential
information or exempt information under Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972
is likely to be disclosed.
5.

Procedure at the Hearing

The initial order of business at the meeting shall be as follows:





declarations of interest;
consideration as to whether to adjourn or to proceed in the absence of the Member, if
the Member is not present;
introductions;
any representation from the Investigating Officer and/or the Member as to reasons why
the Sub-Committee should exclude the press and public and determination as to
whether to exclude the press and public. Where the Sub-Committee decides that it will
not exclude press and public, the Monitoring Officer shall at this point provide copies of
the agenda and reports to any members of the press and public who are present.

The purpose of the hearing is to test the robustness of the report, by examining the
reasoning contained within the report and the quality of the evidence relied upon. This
calls for an inquisitorial approach by the Sub-Committee based on seeking information in
order to identify potential flaws in the report and to clarify issues. The Audit and Standards
Committee will control the procedure and evidence presented at the hearing, including the
questioning of witnesses.
The Sub-Committee may at any time seek legal advice from its legal adviser. Such advice
will on all occasions be given in the presence of the Investigating Officer and the Member.
The procedure at the hearing will be as follows, subject to the Chair of the Sub-Committee
being able to make changes as he or she thinks fit in order to ensure a fair and efficient
meeting.
a) Examination of report and written representations
The Sub-Committee will consider the report together with any written response from
the Member to the report. The Sub-Committee may require the Investigating Officer to
answer questions put to him/her by members regarding the contents of the report.
The Sub-Committee must also take account of the views expressed by the
Independent Persons in their response to the Monitoring Officer.
b) Oral evidence
If there is any disagreement as to the facts of the case, the Investigating Officer will be
invited to make any necessary representations to support the relevant findings of fact
in the report, calling supporting witnesses as agreed by the Chair.
Questions may be asked by the Sub-Committee at any point. The Member, will not be
permitted to directly question the Investigating Officer or the witnesses he/she calls.
If the Member wishes to challenge any oral evidence being presented, then these
questions shall be directed through the Chair.

Page 33

The Member will then be invited to make any necessary representations to support
their version of the facts, calling supporting witnesses as agreed by the Chair.
Questions may be asked by the Sub-Committee at any point. The Investigating Officer
will not be permitted to directly question the Member or the witnesses he/she calls. If
they wish to challenge any oral evidence being presented, then these questions must
be directed through the Chair.
Where the Member seeks to dispute any matter in the report which he/she had not
given notice of intention to dispute in his/her written statement in response, the
Investigating Officer shall draw this to the attention of the Sub-Committee. The SubCommittee may then decide:




not to admit such dispute but to proceed to a decision;
to admit the dispute, but to invite the Investigating Officer to respond
to adjourn the meeting to enable the Investigating Officer to investigate and report
on the dispute

Where appropriate the Investigating Officer will make representations on behalf of the
Complainant to the Sub-Committee.
The Sub-Committee may adjourn the hearing to require the Monitoring Officer to seek
further information or undertake further investigation on any point specified by the
Committee.
6. Decision by the Sub- Committee
The Sub-Committee will consider in private session which of the following findings to
adopt:




that there is no evidence of any failure to comply with the Code of Conduct;
that the Member has failed to comply with the Code of Conduct, but that no action
needs to be taken;
that the Member has failed to comply with the Code of Conduct and that a sanction
should be imposed.

The available sanctions are:a)
b)
c)
d)
e)
f)

g)

Issue a formal censure;
Refer the determination findings to the Council for information;
Make publication of the determination findings by such means as thought fit;
Request the Council to remove the member from being the Chair or Vice Chair of
any Committee or Sub-committee
Request the Council to remove them from any or all Committees or Subcommittees for a specified period;
Request the Council to remove the member for a specified time from all or
specified outside appointments to which s/he has been appointed or nominated
the Council ;.
Offer training to the member; or

Page 34

h)

Exclude the member from the Council’s offices or other premises or facilities, for
a specified period and to the extent desirable and so as not to interfere with the
democratic process, in particular the member’s ability to carry out his or her role
as an elected member.

In deciding what sanction (if any) to recommend the Sub-Committee will consider all
relevant circumstances including any views expressed by the Independent Person.
The Sub-Committee will then resume the public session and the Chair will announce
the decision and the reasons for that decision.
If the matter is a complicated one, where the complaint has a number of aspects, the
Sub-Committee can decide to consider the evidence and reach a finding on each
aspect separately.
The Sub-Committee will then consider in open session whether there are any
recommendations which it wishes to make arising from consideration of the allegation.
7.

Notice of findings
The Monitoring Officer will make a short written decision available on the day of the
hearing and a full written decision in draft will be prepared as soon as possible, which
will form the basis of the recommendation report to the Committee.
Within two weeks of the end of the hearing, the Monitoring Officer will circulate a full
written decision, to the Member and the Complainant and covene a Committee to
receive the recommendation report.

8.

Confidentiality and disclosure of information
Where the Chair of the Committee considers that the report and/or any of the written
statements in response are likely to disclose any exempt information and in
consequence that it is likely that the Committee will, during consideration of these
matters, not be open to the public, he/she shall instruct the legal adviser to not provide
copies of these papers to the press or public or permit their inspection by the press or
public in advance of the meeting.
The Hearing will be held in public except for those parts of its proceedings which
involve exempt information and during the deliberations of the Committee.

Page 35

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5
Audit and Standards Committee
26 April 2021

Title of Report:

Internal Audit Charter, Strategy Statement and Annual Plan
2021/22

Report of:

Darren Collins, Strategic Director, Resources and Digital

Purpose of the Report
1. The report sets out the proposed Internal Audit Charter, Strategy Statement and
Annual Plan of work to be undertaken by the Internal Audit & Risk Service in
2021/22.
Background
2. The terms of reference for Internal Audit are outlined in the Financial
Regulations, which form part of the Council’s Constitution and the Internal Audit
Charter.
3. The Internal Audit & Risk Service is required to objectively examine, evaluate
and report upon the adequacy of the control environment as a contribution to the
proper, economic, efficient and effective use of the Council's resources.
4

The Strategic Director, Resources and Digital has delegated responsibility to
maintain an adequate internal audit of the Council’s financial affairs as required
by Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972. The Accounts and Audit
Regulations 2015 also require Councils to “undertake an effective internal audit
to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, control and governance
processes, taking into account public sector internal auditing standards or
guidance”.

5

The Chief Internal Auditor manages the Internal Audit & Risk Service and is
responsible for ensuring resources are sufficient to meet the Audit Plan, which is
developed based on a systematic review and evaluation of all aspects of the
internal control environment.

6

The principal objective of the Internal Audit & Risk Service is to assist service
managers in delivering the priorities of the Council and its partners, through the
assessment of exposure to risk and the continuous improvement of the control
environment.
Internal Audit Charter

7

The purpose, authority and responsibility of Internal Audit must be formally
defined in an Internal Audit Charter, consistent with the definition of Internal
Auditing outlined in Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS).

Page 37

8

The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) define internal audit as:
‘an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity designed to add
value and improve an organisation’s operations. It helps an organisation
accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to
evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk management, control and
governance processes.’

9

These standards are based on the mandatory elements of the Institute of
Internal Auditors (IIA) International Professional Practices Framework (IPPF) and
are intended to promote further improvement in the professionalism, quality,
consistency and effectiveness of internal audit across the public sector.

10 A key element of compliance with PSIAS is the periodic review and approval by
the Audit and Standards Committee of an Internal Audit Charter. The Charter is
a formal document that defines Internal Audit’s purpose, authority and
responsibility setting out the Chief Internal Auditor’s functional reporting
relationships, authorising rights of access for internal audit staff and defining the
scope of internal audit activity. Final approval of the Internal Audit Charter
resides with the Audit and Standards Committee.
11 The Internal Audit Charter is attached at Appendix A. It was last circulated to
Committee in April 2020.
12 The Chief Internal Auditor has carried out an annual review of the Internal Audit
Charter and confirmed that it continues to reflect best practice and no
amendments are required.
Basis for the Audit Plan
13 Standards for Internal Audit in local government are set out in the Public Sector
Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). PSIAS state that the Chief Internal Auditor
“must establish risk-based plans to determine the priorities of the internal audit
activity, consistent with the organisation’s goals”.
.
14 In accordance with the PSIAS, the input of senior management must be
considered in this process. All Service Directors were given the opportunity to
contribute towards the plan.
15 The Chief Internal Auditor forms an annual assurance opinion based on the
programme of audit work as well as assurance obtained from other means.
Combined assurance aims to optimise the assurance coverage obtained from
management, and both internal and external assurance providers.
16 In addition to audit, the Chief Internal Auditor considers any issues identified
through counter fraud and irregularities or developing systems and processes
insofar as they impact on the effective operation of governance, risk
management or internal controls.
17 The plan for 2021/22 also includes three dedicated Corporate Fraud posts.
These officers will continue to develop and embed the Council’s Counter Fraud

Page 38

& Corruption Strategy as well as conducting any fraud and irregularity
investigations. Updates in relation to Counter Fraud activity will be presented
biannually to the Committee.
18 The plan includes an allocation for advice and consultancy to all services and
partnerships where appropriate. This is an increasing area of focus given the
amount of change ongoing across the Council and its partners. Time is allocated
to support developing systems, ensuring early engagement and audit support
across the Council. Consideration will also be given to assessing risks and
gaining assurance in relation to the transition of The Gateshead Housing
Company into the Council.
19 Rather than a traditional cyclical-based approach, the plan focuses on the main
risks to the Council. It provides a balanced approach to traditional compliance
work with advisory work as a catalyst for service improvement and to sharpen
focus on emerging risks. The plan is flexible and is reviewed and adjusted
throughout the year as necessary in response to changes in policies, systems,
processes, risks and controls across the Council.
20 To take account of the ongoing response to COVID, the plan includes specific
coverage of all high risk, key financial, IT and governance functions. An
allowance has also been included for the ongoing work required in relation to
audit of COVID grant funding from central government.
21 The Audit Strategy Statement is attached at Appendix B and the Annual Plan for
2021/22 is attached at Appendix C. The approach to the plan is that it is flexible,
supportive, challenging, prioritised and timely, all characteristics endorsed by
PSIAS which ensures the plan maintains focus on emerging risks and that
assurance is continually focused on the most important risks to the Council,
retaining flexibility to reprioritise assurance activities as required.
Recommendations
22 The Committee is asked to:


Note the report and the opinion that the Internal Audit Charter continues to
comply with Public Sector Internal Audit Standards;



Agree the Audit Strategy Statement and the Annual Plan of work to be
provided by the Internal Audit & Risk Service for 2021/22; and



Agree to receive quarterly monitoring reports showing progress made
against the plan.

Contact: Natalie Porthouse - ext. 3723

Page 39

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix A
Internal Audit Service
Internal Audit Charter 2021/22
1.

Introduction

1.1

The Chief Internal Auditor is responsible for effectively managing the
activity of the Internal Audit Service in accordance with this Charter.
This Charter has been written in accordance with UK Public Sector
Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and is the formal document that
defines internal audit’s purpose, authority and responsibility. The
Charter also establishes internal audit’s position within the
organisation, including access to records, personnel and physical
property.

2.

Statutory Basis

2.1

Internal Audit is statutory service in the context of the Accounts and
Audit Regulations (England) 2015, which states that:
“A relevant authority must undertake an effective internal audit to
evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, control and
governance processes, taking into account public sector internal
auditing standards or guidance.”

2.2

The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and CIPFA’s Local
Government Application Note (LGAN) constitute proper practices to
satisfy the requirements for larger relevant local government bodies set
out in the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015. The Charter has
been reviewed to ensure it remains compliant with these requirements.

2.3

Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 states that every local
authority should make arrangements for the proper administration of
their financial affairs and shall secure that one of their officers has the
responsibility for the administration of these affairs (The Chief Financial
Officer (CFO)). CIPFA has defined proper administration in that it
should include ‘compliance with the statutory requirements for
accounts and internal audit’.

2.4

The CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer (CFO)
states that the CFO must:




Ensure an effective internal audit function is resourced and
maintained;
Ensure that the authority has put in place effective arrangements for
internal audit of the control environment;
Support internal audit arrangements; and

Page 41



Ensure the audit committee receives the necessary advice and
information so that both functions can operate effectively.

2.5

This Internal Audit Charter recognises the mandatory nature of the
PSIAS including the definition of Internal Auditing, the Mission of
Internal Audit, the Code of Ethics and the Standards themselves.

3.

Definition of Internal Auditing

3.1

The Council’s Internal Audit Service has adopted the mandatory
definition of internal auditing as set out in the common set of PSIAS:
“Internal auditing is an independent, objective assurance and
consulting activity designed to add value and improve an organisation’s
operations. It helps an organisation accomplish its objectives by
bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve
the effectiveness of risk management, control and governance
processes”

4.

Mission of Internal Audit

4.1

The Mission of Internal Audit articulates what internal audit aspires to
accomplish within an organisation. The Council’s Internal Audit
Service has adopted the mission statement set out in the PSIAS:
“To enhance and protect organisational values by providing risk-based
and objective assurance, advice and insight.”

5.

Core Principles for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing

5.1

The Core Principles, taken as a whole, articulate internal audit
effectiveness. For an internal audit function to be considered effective
in achieving its mission, all the following Principles should be present
and operating effectively:











Demonstrates integrity
Demonstrates competence and due professional care
Is objective and free from undue influence (independent)
Aligns with strategies, objectives and risks of the organisation
Is appropriately positioned and adequately resourced
Demonstrates quality and continuous improvement
Communicates effectively
Provides risk-based assurance
Is insightful, proactive, and future-focused
Promotes organisational improvement.

Page 42

6.

Code of Ethics

6.1

The Code of Ethics, incorporated within PSIAS, is necessary and
appropriate for the profession of internal auditors as it is founded on the
trust placed in its objective assurance about risk management, control
and governance. All internal auditors working for or providing a service
to the Council must conform to the Code of Ethics as set out below. If
internal auditors have membership of another professional body, then
they must also comply with the relevant requirements of that body.

6.2

The Code of Ethics is based upon four principles relevant to the
profession and practice of internal auditing and set out the rules of
conduct that describe behaviour norms expected of internal auditors to
guide their ethical conduct:





6.3

Integrity: The integrity of internal auditors establishes trust and thus
provides the basis for reliance on their judgement. All internal audit
staff will:





6.4

Integrity
Objectivity
Confidentiality
Competency

Perform their work with honesty, diligence and responsibility.
Observe the law and make disclosures expected by the law and
their profession.
Not knowingly be a party to any illegal activity or engage in acts
that are discreditable to the profession of internal auditing or the
Council.
Respect and contribute to the legitimate and ethical objectives of
the Council.

Objectivity: Internal auditors will exhibit the highest level of
professional objectivity in gathering, evaluating and communicating
information about the activity or process being examined. They will
make a balanced assessment of all of the relevant circumstances and
will not be unduly influenced by their own interests or the interests of
others in forming judgements. All internal audit staff will:





Not participate in any activity or relationship that may impair their
unbiased assessment. This participation includes those activities
or relationships that may be in conflict with the interests of the
Council.
Not accept anything that may impair or be presumed to impair their
professional judgement.
Disclose all material facts known to them that, if not disclosed, may
distort the reporting of the activities under review.

Page 43

6.5

Confidentiality: Internal auditors will respect the value and ownership
of the information they receive and will not disclose information without
appropriate authority unless there is a legal or professional obligation to
do so. All internal audit staff will:



6.6

Be prudent in the use and protection of information acquired in the
course of their duties.
Not use information for any personal gain or in any manner that
would be contrary to the law or detrimental to the legitimate and
ethical objectives of the Council.

Competency: Internal auditors will apply the knowledge, skills and
experience needed in the performance of their duties. All internal audit
staff will:




Engage only in those services for which they have the necessary
knowledge, skills and experience.
Perform their work in accordance with the International Standards
for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing.
Continually improve their proficiency, effectiveness and the quality
of the service they deliver.

7.

Principles of Public Life

7.1

Internal audit staff will also have regard to Nolan’s Seven Principles of
Public Life in the course of their duties. The seven principles are:










Selflessness: Holders of public office should act solely in terms of
the public interest. They should not do so in order to gain financial
or other benefits for themselves, their family or their friends.
Integrity: Holders of public office should not place themselves
under any financial or other obligation to outside individuals or
organisations that might seek to influence them in the performance
of their official duties.
Objectivity: In carrying out public business, including making
public appointments, awarding contracts, or recommending
individuals for rewards and benefits, holders of public office should
make choices on merit.
Accountability: Holders of public office are accountable for their
decisions and actions to the public and must submit themselves to
whatever scrutiny is appropriate to their office.
Openness: Holders of public office should be as open as possible
about all decisions and actions they take. They should give
reasons for their decisions and restrict information only when the
wider public interest clearly demands.
Honesty: Holders of public office have a duty to declare any
private interests relating to their public duties and to take steps to
resolve any conflicts arising in a way that protects the public
interest.

Page 44



Leadership: Holders of public office should promote and support
these principles by leadership and example.

8.

Purpose, Authority and Responsibilities

8.1

Purpose

8.1.1 Internal Audit Service is a managerial control primarily responsible for
objectively examining, evaluating and reporting upon the adequacy of
the internal control environment as a contribution to the proper,
economic, efficient and effective use of resources. Internal Audit is one
of a number of assurance providers that contribute to the Council’s
corporate assurance framework.
8.1.2 The purpose of the Internal Audit Service is to deliver a risk-based
audit plan in a professional and independent manner to allow the Chief
Internal Auditor to provide the Council with an opinion on the level of
assurance it can place upon the risk management, internal control and
governance environments, and to make recommendations for
continuous improvement in these areas. This opinion will be set out in
the Internal Audit Annual Report to the Audit and Standards Committee
and supports the Council’s Annual Governance Statement which
accompanies the Annual Statement of Accounts.
8.1.3 To this end the Internal Audit Service is required to review, appraise
and report upon:









The soundness, adequacy and application of accounting, financial
and other operational controls.
The extent of compliance with established policies, plans and
procedures, statute and regulations.
The extent to which the Council’s assets and interests are properly
accounted for and safeguarded from losses of all kinds including
fraud, bribery, corruption, other offences, waste, extravagance,
inefficient administration, poor value for money or other cause.
The suitability and reliability of financial and other operational
information.
The economy, efficiency and effectiveness with which resources
are utilised.
Whether operations are being carried out as planned and
objectives and goals are being met.
The investigation of instances of fraud, bribery, corruption and
irregularities.

8.1.4 Other objectives include:


Supporting the Section 151 Officer (Chief Finance Officer) in
discharging his statutory duties for ensuring proper administration
of the Council’s financial affairs.

Page 45










8.2

Championing good governance by helping to improve the Council’s
risk management, control and governance processes by providing
management with timely advice and guidance.
Supporting the Audit and Standards Committee in fulfilling its
governance responsibilities as detailed in the Committee’s terms of
reference set out in the Council’s Constitution.
Supporting Officers and Councillors in identifying and
understanding exposure to risk and providing advice on control
design, techniques and strategies.
Working with other assurance and review bodies to ascertain the
extent to which reliance can be placed on the work of other
auditors and inspectorates to maximise assurance and the
effectiveness of audit resources available.
Helping to promote a strong counter fraud culture across the
Council, through the development and effective implementation of
the Council’s Counter Fraud and Corruption Strategy and AntiMoney Laundering policy.
Providing quality services through the highest standards of
professional practice, quality assurance systems and investment in
staff.
Be future focused and to continually add value to the organisation.

Authority

8.2.1 The Internal Audit Service is an assurance function established by the
Council under the requirements of the Accounts and Audit Regulations
2015. Article 9 of the Council’s Constitution outlines the role of the
Audit and Standards Committee. Delegated responsibility to maintain
an adequate and effective internal audit of the Council’s accounting
records and control systems rests with the Strategic Director,
Resources and Digital as set out in the Council’s Constitution
(Delegations to Individual Managers, Article 13).
8.2.2 The scope of Internal Audit Service activity allows for unrestricted
coverage of the Council’s control environment, which includes all its
operations, resources, services and responsibilities in relation to other
bodies. The Chief Internal Auditor, in consultation with the Chair of the
Audit and Standards Committee, the Strategic Director, Resources and
Digital, other Strategic Directors and Service Directors will have the
freedom to determine the priorities for Internal Audit Service activity.
8.2.3 The Chief Internal Auditor will carry out a systematic review and
evaluation of all aspects of the internal control environment through
consideration of the Council’s risk register and consultation with senior
managers and the Council’s External Auditor. This enables the Chief
Internal Auditor to prepare a three-year risk-based plan, covering all
areas of the Council and to provide purpose and direction in this
process. This plan will be linked to a statement of how the Internal
Audit Service will be delivered and developed in accordance with this
Charter and the Council’s overall objectives.

Page 46

8.2.4 Financial Regulations grant Internal Audit the authority to:





Enter all Council premises and land at reasonable times;
Access all records, documents, data and correspondence relating
to all transactions of the Council, or unofficial funds operated by an
employee as part of their duties;
Receive all explanations as are necessary concerning any matter
under examination
Require any employee of the Council to produce cash, stores or
any other property under their control belonging to the Council or
held as part of the employee’s duties.

8.2.5 Such rights of access extend beyond the Council to other bodies,
including:




Organisations to whom the Council has given grants;
Organisations with whom the Council contracts; and
Partner organisations in any schemes for which the Council has
responsibility as the accountable body.

8.2.6 This will be affected by incorporating these audit requirements into
appropriate agreements with external bodies. Where required
assurances based on the work of the Internal Audit Service may be
provided to such a respective body, this will take the form of a written
assurance from the Chief Internal Auditor detailing the objectives of the
internal audit activity undertaken and a conclusion on the assessment
of the internal control environment.
8.2.7 The main determinant of the effectiveness of the Internal Audit Service
is that it is seen to be independent. To ensure this, the Internal Audit
Service will operate in a framework that allows direct reporting to the
Strategic Director, Resources and Digital and free and unfettered
access to all senior management, the Chief Executive, Monitoring
Officer and Councillors, including the Chair of the Audit and Standards
Committee. The Chief Internal Auditor reports on an administrative
basis to the Service Director, Commercialisation and Improvement.
8.2.8 For the purposes of compliance with PSIAS within the Council, the
Audit and Standards Committee is designated as the “Board” and
Strategic and Service Directors are designated as “Senior
Management”.
8.3

Responsibilities

8.3.1 The Internal Audit Service will perform all audit work in accordance with
PSIAS and the prescribed local procedures as outlined within the
Council’s Internal Audit Manual, giving due recognition to the
mandatory basis of the PSIAS. Auditors will carry out their duties in
compliance with the standards and the Code of Ethics detailed within

Page 47

them. In addition to the Annual Internal Audit Report, the Chief Internal
Auditor will report progress against the annual audit plan to the Audit
and Standards Committee on a quarterly basis. This will include details
of any significant weaknesses identified in internal controls and the
results of the Chief Internal Auditor’s Quality Assurance and
Improvement Programme which assesses compliance with PSIAS.
8.3.2 The Internal Audit Service will have no responsibilities over the
activities that it audits beyond the furnishing of recommendations and
advice to management on associated risks and controls.
8.3.3 The existence of the Internal Audit Service does not diminish the
responsibility of management to establish systems of internal control to
ensure that activities are conducted in a secure, efficient and wellordered way. Management is expected to implement all agreed audit
recommendations by the agreed date and each audit will be followed
up to assess the extent to which this has happened.
8.3.4 Arrangements are in place with Strategic Directors and Service
Directors to inform the Internal Audit Service of changes in Council
systems and procedures on an ongoing basis.
8.3.5 Every effort will be made to preserve objectivity by ensuring that all
Internal Audit Service employees are free from any conflicts of interest
and do not undertake any non-audit duties other than those for the
demands of the Service.
8.3.6 Internal auditors will not be allocated to assurance reviews in areas
where they have had responsibility for, or have undertaken and
significant advice and consultancy work, within the previous 12 months.
8.3.7 As the Chief Internal Auditor also has responsibility for corporate risk
management and counter fraud, arrangements are made for any audit
work to be carried out in these areas by a suitably experienced and
qualified auditor. In these cases the Chief Internal Auditor will remove
themselves from the review process of those audits and all findings and
draft reports will be shared at their conclusion with both the Chief
Internal Auditor and the Strategic Director, Resources and Digital in
order to apply the necessary safeguards as set out in the PSIAS
standard 1112 where the Chief Audit Executive has roles beyond
Internal Auditing.
9

Resourcing of Internal Audit

9.1

The Chief Internal Auditor assesses resource requirements and draws
up the Audit Plan by considering the following:



The Council’s priorities;
The level of risk, taking into account such areas as materiality,
complexity, potential for fraud and sensitivity;

Page 48






Consultation with senior managers and the External Auditor;
Changes in legislation;
The scope of planned external audit work; and
The implications of external inspection reports.

9.2

The staffing structure of the Internal Audit Service comprises of
professional accountant, accounting technician and trainee posts with a
mix of specialisms to reflect the varied workload of the Service. Where
the Chief Internal Auditor considers there to be insufficient resources to
deliver an effective audit plan this will be drawn to the attention of the
Strategic Director, Resources and Digital and the Chair of the Audit and
Standards Committee immediately.

9.3

As far as practical, the Internal Audit Service will not participate in the
day-to-day operation of any systems of internal control. Where this is
unavoidable then the auditor in question will not perform audit work in
the same area for a minimum of 12 months thereafter. Any conflicts of
interest relating to a respective area must be notified in advance to the
Chief Internal Auditor. The Chief Internal Auditor maintains a record of
all declared interests from Internal Audit staff and regular training
sessions will be carried out to remind staff of the Code of Ethics. If any
impairment to objectivity or independence does occur, then these will
be disclosed to appropriate parties depending on the nature of the
impairment; with significant breaches being reported to the Audit and
Standards Committee.

9.4

Employees within the Internal Audit Service will be expected to
contribute to the general management and conduct of the Council’s
business through membership of working groups and participation in ad
hoc exercises.

9.5

At the request of the Strategic Director, Resources and Digital,
appropriate specialists from other Services should be made available to
participate in any audit or review requiring specialist knowledge.

9.6

The Chief Internal Auditor will carry out a continuous review of the
development and training needs of all audit personnel and will arrange
in-service training delivered through both internal and external courses.

9.7

Internal Audit maintains its awareness of national and local issues
through membership and subscription to professional bodies such as
CIPFA’s Better Governance Forum, Technical Information Service,
Finance Advisory Network, the Institute of Internal Auditors and through
regular liaison with external audit.

9.8

The Service will keep abreast of best audit practice by adhering to
CIPFA’s and the IIA’s practice advisories and practice guides, where
applicable, as well as networking with other internal audit service
providers.

Page 49

9.9

In this regard the Service considers trends and emerging issues that
could impact on the organisation.

10

Scope of Audit Work

10.1 Internal Audit’s role applies to all functions and services for which the
Council is responsible, including those delivered by partners where
appropriate.
10.2 In addition to the regular review of all key systems of internal control
which forms the majority of assurance work, Internal Audit will:


Respond to requests for support, advice and guidance on
implementing and / or improving best practice control procedures
for current and new systems.



Provide support, advice and guidance on risk and controls to staff
involved in the design and implementation of new systems and
processes.



Provide assistance on key projects, including attendance on project
boards, and conduct specialist consultancy and value for money
reviews. The scope of the work is agreed with management and is
subject to having the necessary resources, skills and ensuring
suitable assurance over Internal Audit’s independence and
objectivity. Consultancy work will be assessed by the Chief Internal
Auditor for its impact on the internal control environment and the
potential added value in terms of the Council achieving its legitimate
and ethical objectives. Any significant advice and consultancy work
that may be considered to impact on the independence of the
Internal Audit Service will be reported to the Audit and Standards
Committee for approval.



Be alert in all its work to risks and exposure that could allow fraud
and corruption to occur and to any indications that a fraudulent or
corrupt practice may be occurring.



Review controls where a potential fraud has been detected /
reported to provide assurance that the alleged fraudulent activity is
unable to continue and to prevent a reoccurrence.



Determine the most appropriate course of action by which fraud and
irregularities should be investigated in accordance with the
Council’s Counter Fraud and Corruption Policy.

10.3 It must be noted that whilst Internal Audit will promote the Council’s
Counter Fraud Policy to deter and prevent fraud, for example
participating in the National Fraud Initiative, it does not have
responsibility for the prevention and detection of fraud and corruption.
Internal Audit cannot guarantee that fraud or corruption will be detected

Page 50

in its work. Audit procedures alone, even when performed with due
professional care, cannot guarantee that fraud, bribery and corruption
will be detected. Managing the risk of fraud and corruption is the
responsibility of all service managers.
10.4 The Chief Internal Auditor has provision in the Audit Plan to allow for
the investigation of fraud, bribery and corruption and the Council’s
Financial Regulations, Fraud and Corruption Policy and Statement on
the Prevention of Bribery require him to be notified of all suspected or
detected fraud, corruption or impropriety. The Chief Internal Auditor will
assess the potential impact of such cases on the internal control
environment.
Date of next Review - April 2022.

Page 51

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix B

The Internal Audit Strategy
Statement & Annual Plan 2021/22

Natalie Porthouse
Chief Internal Auditor
Internal Audit & Risk Service
Resources and Digital

Page 53

Introduction
1. The Internal Audit & Risk Service for Gateshead Council plays an essential role in
supporting the Council to achieve its objectives and outcomes. The Annual Audit Plan
for 2021/22 has been formulated from a review of the major risks that the Council faces.
The plan therefore focuses on areas where we can add the most value and provide
assurance that the Council’s risks are being properly managed. The Service’s objective
is to promote and champion sound governance and effective and efficient internal
controls throughout the Council and to provide objective assurance by ensuring key
business controls are operating as planned and value for money is being achieved to
support delivery of the pledges within ‘Making Gateshead a place where everyone
thrives’.
2. The Council’s internal audit function is provided by the Internal Audit & Risk Service
which is based within the Commercialisation and Improvement Service, within
Resources and Digital.
Purpose
3. This document sets out Internal Audit’s Strategy and Annual Audit Plan for Gateshead
Council for the financial year 2021/22.
4. The purpose of the Internal Audit Strategy and Annual Audit Plan is to:
 Meet the requirements of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) that
require the Chief Internal Auditor to produce a risk based annual plan taking into
account the need to give an independent annual opinion on the overall adequacy and
effectiveness of the Council’s framework of governance, risk management and control
 Deliver an internal audit service that meets the requirements of the Accounts & Audit
Regulations 2015
 Ensure effective audit coverage and provide a mechanism to deliver independent and
objective assurance in particular to the Audit and Standards Committee and Senior
Managers
 Identify the key risks facing the Council that could prevent it from achieving its
objectives and determine the corresponding level of audit resources required to
assess mitigating controls
 Add value and support senior management in providing effective internal controls and
identifying opportunities for improving value for money
 Support the Strategic Directors of Resources and Digital and Corporate Services &
Governance in fulfilling their obligations as the Council’s Section 151 and Monitoring
Officers, respectively.
Key Outputs Statement
5. The Internal Audit & Risk Service will deliver key responsibilities as follows:
 To provide ongoing assurance to management on the Council’s control environment
comprising systems of governance, risk management and internal control
 To support the Council’s values and expected standards of behaviour
 To be responsive to transformational change and service demands
 To work together with the Council’s external auditors to ensure reliance can always
Page
54
be placed on audit work where
appropriate

 To continue to develop joint working relationships with other related regional and
national groups and bodies
 To embed the integration of internal audit work with governance and service
improvement and produce a clearly co-ordinated risk-based approach to the audit of
business systems across the Council
 To ensure agreed management actions to audit recommendations made are fully
implemented
 To deliver the statutory requirements of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015;
 To continue to develop and lead on the Council’s corporate governance
arrangements including the review and production of the Annual Governance
Statement
 To provide an effective corporate counter fraud and corruption service and response
in accordance with the Council’s Counter Fraud and Corruption Arrangements and
the Local Government Fraud Strategy - “Fighting Fraud and Corruption Locally”.
Key Characteristics of the Annual Plan
6. Having regard to the current risk profile of the Council, the following main areas have
been included in the Annual Plan for 2021/22:


The ongoing impact of COVID 19 and the reallocation of resources to critical areas
has had a significant impact on the Council and will continue to do so for the
immediate future. The 2021/22 plan has therefore been revised to ensure it has
adequate flexibility to address emerging risks as well as provide assurance in high
risk, key financial, IT and governance functions. An allowance has also been included
for audit requirements in relation to COVID grant funding from central government.

 The scale and pace of change of the financial challenge continues to have a
significant impact on the Council. Changes have taken place in the Council’s structure
with ongoing activity to identify and deliver savings across all areas of Council
services. The implementation of changes and public service reform, with a reduced
workforce and reduced funding whilst delivering business as usual and achieving
priorities, remains a key challenge and risk for the Council during 2021/22 and
beyond.
 Internal Audit cannot manage risks directly; however, it can play an important role by
developing a flexible audit approach and a dynamic plan to address emerging risks as
well as those risks yet to be identified.
 Periods of change inevitably increase the potential for risks, both positive
(opportunities) and negative (hazards). The reduction in the workforce for example
provides a potential for breakdown in controls as well as an opportunity to consider
alternative more efficient ways of organising people, systems and processes without
impacting negatively on the control environment. To reflect this, the proposed plan
includes time for advice and consultancy to support officers and challenge them in the
establishment and development of their systems of governance, risk management
and internal control. An important distinction is that Internal Audit’s work will be
challenging and advisory, rather than the design of controls which are a management
responsibility.

Page 55

 The plan includes time to reflect the work the Corporate Counter Fraud Team will be
doing in relation to further developing and embedding the Council’s counter fraud
arrangements and also work to complete proactive counter fraud reviews aimed at
detecting and preventing fraud in high risk areas.
 The challenge is to ensure that there is a balance between responding to these risks
and ensuring that there is sufficient coverage of key systems. The Audit Plan must
balance the need to:
a. Provide assurance on the effectiveness of internal controls operating within the
Council.
b. Adequately review the assurance provided by key financial systems for
management and the external auditor to place reliance on.
c. Allow for the Internal Audit Service to offer advice and guidance on control and
efficiency issues.
d. Investigate suspected or detected frauds or irregularities.
e. Provide time to allow the Internal Audit Service to carry out unplanned or
consultancy work requested by Service Directors.
 The continued pace of change across the Council requires assurance that is
prioritised and timely and the plan must provide for this assurance to enable remedial
action or controls to be implemented in a timely manner. Based on experience and
feedback from Service Directors, there is a need for shorter, more focused and
practical audits in areas of emerging risk. Close liaison with Business Partners who
regularly attend Group Management Team meetings will facilitate a continuous review
process to ensure the plan remains relevant.
2021/22 Annual Planning Process
7. The approach to audit planning in the Council for 2021/22 has been based on the
following:
 The Council’s priorities
 The impact of COVID 19 on the control environment, finances and delivery of Council
priorities
 The risks documented in the Council’s strategic and operational risk registers
 Consultation with Service Directors and the external auditors
 Changes in legislation
 The scope of planned external audit work
 The implications of external inspection reports
 Findings and outcomes from audit and investigation work in 2020/21 and earlier years
 Consultation with colleagues across the region
 Time elapsed since the previous audit
8. Once this information has been analysed, the perceived level of risk for each audit area
is assessed based on thirteen areas taking into account such factors as materiality,
complexity, potential for fraud and sensitivity. Based on a score derived from these
assessments, audits are then categorised as high, medium or low priority which dictates
when they will be audited within a 3-year cycle. High priority areas are audited on an
annual basis. On completion of each audit, the risk profile is revisited to ensure it
remains up to date.

Page 56

9. The audit plan for 2021/22 is based on resources of 14 full time equivalent (FTE)
employees (12.5 FTE’s for 2020/21). Auditor’s time has been allocated on the basis of
an estimate of 71% productive hours after allowing for non-productive time including
annual leave, sickness absence and training.
10. On this basis, the plan for 2021/22 has been broken down into 19,582 productive hours
(16,969 originally planned productive hours for 2020/21) as shown below in paragraph
14. The former TGHC audit plan has now been incorporated within the Gateshead audit
plan.
Plan Structure
11. Based on the above, the Chief Internal Auditor considers that assurance is best obtained
through a combination of different “types” of audits. This is not an uncommon approach
and reflects a changing emphasis for the approach to the plan tailored to the specific
needs of the Council during a period of significant change.
12. There are five different types of audit activity in the plan:
 Assurance review – to provide assurance that systems and controls are operating as
intended and defined by risk profiles of each audit area. The risk-based approach also
takes into consideration the views of Strategic and Service Directors.
 Advice and Consultancy – early involvement of Internal Audit in new initiatives,
ways of working or systems, particularly through periods of significant change, can
help to maintain a robust control environment.
 Key systems – assurance on core financial systems that are considered high risk
requiring regular assurance. This work is important in providing annual assurance to
the Council.
 Grant Certification – assurance on grant returns and compliance with grant
determinations.
 Counter Fraud– proactive and reactive audit work on counter fraud and irregularity
issues.
13. A balanced approach of using different types of audit and other work is considered the
most effective way to deliver the Internal Audit Strategy.
Plan Content
14. Following the planning process outlined above and the principles of the PSIAS, a draft
plan has been developed. As outlined, the plan needs to remain flexible and will be
subject to continuous review in consultation with Strategic and Service Directors and the
Audit and Standards Committee. A summary of the draft plan is shown below with
further detail in Appendix C.
Groups and Services
Children, Adults & Families

Audit Hours
2,140

Page 57

Public Health & Wellbeing
Economy, Innovation and Growth
Housing, Environment & Healthy Communities
Resources and Digital
Corporate Services and Governance
Office of the Chief Executive
Schools
Total Group and Service Hours
Corporate
Counter Fraud
Grant Certification
Emergency Contingency and Recovery
Audit Planning and Management
Total Corporate Hours
External Bodies
Trading Companies
Northumbria Police
Total External Bodies Hours
Total Productive
Non-productive
Total Hours
Audit Type
Advice and Consultancy
Assurance Review
Grant Certification
Audit Planning and Management
Counter Fraud
Non-productive
Total Council Plan
External Bodies
Trading Companies
Northumbria Police
Total Hours

340
835
1,461
3,032
575
170
922
9,475
5,207
440
700
1,355
7,702
100
2,305
2,405
19,582
7,405
26,987
Audit Hours
810
8,665
1,140
1,355
5,207
7,405
24,582
100
2,305
26,987

15. Audit Planning and Management covers other audit activities including involvement in
corporate initiatives, preparation of audit committee reports, audit planning, preparation
of the Annual Governance Statement, liaison with the external auditors and development
and support for new financial and internal audit management systems.
How the service will be provided
16. Internal audit provision is delivered by the in-house team supplemented by a joint
working arrangement with Newcastle City Council for IT auditing. This arrangement will
be kept under review on an annual
basis.
Page
58

17. In order to deliver the Annual Audit Plan at the required quality and professionalism, the
team undertaking internal audit activity have the required mix of skills and experience.
All internal audit staff are either fully qualified CCAB Accountants, qualified Association
of Accounting Technicians or equivalent, Accredited Counter Fraud Specialists or
studying for professional qualifications.
18. Professional judgement has been applied in assessing the level of resources required to
deliver the Annual Audit Plan. The level of resource applied is a product of:




The complexity of the areas to be reviewed;
Factors such as number of locations, number and frequency of transactions; and
Assurance that can be brought forward from previous audits and other internal and
external reviews carried out.

19. Staff development needs are continually assessed to ensure that the optimal level and
mix of skills required to deliver a highly professional and added value internal audit
function is maintained.
Performance Management
20. The standards for ‘proper practice’ in relation to internal audit are laid down in the PSIAS
and compliance with these professional standards will be ensured through a
combination of internal and external reviews of compliance and quality. The outcome of
the most recent external assessment against PSIAS was reported to the Audit and
Standards Committee on 27 April 2020. A number minor of actions were identified and
progress in addressing these will be continuously reviewed. Further examples include:




Internal self-assessments by the Chief Internal Auditor.
Customer satisfaction questionnaires.
Annual CIPFA benchmarking information.

21. To achieve the planned coverage for 2021/22, deliver a high standard of customer care
and demonstrate effectiveness of the service, the internal audit function has well
established internal performance targets based on best professional practice. The
following indicators will be reported to the Committee on a quarterly basis:
Performance Indicator
Productive (Chargeable) time as a % of overall time
Actual hours against planned hours achieved in year
Number of audit recommendations implemented:
High
Medium and Best Practice
Audits completed within agreed time (budgeted hours)
Customer satisfaction:
Average score (maximum 4)

Target
71%
97.25%

100%
90%
90%

3.4 (85%)

Average cost per chargeable day

Page 59

Lower than
average

Appendix C

Children, Adults & Families
Audit Type
Audit Area
Advice and
Consultancy

General Advice and Consultancy

Total Advice and Consultancy
Adult Care Provision
Care Call
Day Centres for Adults with Disabilities
Safeguarding - Adult Services
CCG Recharges
Promoting Independence Centres
Children's Care Provision
Safeguarding Children
Children's Care Homes
Special Educational Needs - Early Help
Learning Skills
Commissioning of Children's Services
Commissioning Adult Services
Assurance
Domiciliary Care Services
Review
Adults Mosaic Implementation
Children’s Mosaic Implementation
Great North Care Record
School Sports Partnership
Fostering and Out of Authority Provision
Early Help Hub
Early Years Childcare Service
Targeted Family Support
Specialist Support Services - Family Support
Special Educational Needs - Schools
Inspection Team
Children, Adults & Families Follow Up Contingency
Audits brought forward from 2020/21
Total Assurance Review
Total Audit Hours

Page 60

Risk

Hours

N/A

100

High
High
High
High
High
High
High
High
High
High
High
High
High
New
New
New
New
New
Medium
Medium
Medium
Medium
Medium
Medium
Medium
Annual

100
100
80
70
75
60
70
100
75
100
70
100
90
90
80
40
40
50
50
80
80
100
80
40
70
70
150
30
2,040
2,140

Schools
Audit Type
Advice and
Consultancy

Audit Area

Risk

Hours

General Advice and Consultancy

N/A

70

Total Advice and Consultancy
School Audits
Assurance
Audit Follow Up Contingency
Review
Audits brought forward from 2020/21
Total Assurance Review
Total Audit Hours
Public Health & Wellbeing
Audit Type
Audit Area
Advice and
Consultancy

General Advice and Consultancy

Total Advice and Consultancy
Public Health Contract Monitoring
Primary Care
Assurance
Leisure Centres
Review
Audit Follow Up Contingency
Audits brought forward from 2020/21
Total Assurance Review
Total Audit Hours
Corporate Services and Governance
Audit Type
Audit Area
Advice and
Consultancy

General Advice and Consultancy

Total Advice and Consultancy
Mayor's Charity Fund
Corporate Procurement
Information Governance and Data Protection
HR Strategy, Policies and Procedures
Print Point
Assurance
Review
Health and Safety
Recruitment and Appointment Process
Sickness Monitoring
Audit Follow Up Contingency
Audits brought forward from 2020/21
Total Assurance Review
Total Audit Hours

Page 61

High
N/A
N/A

70
720
130
2
852
922

Risk

Hours

N/A

30

High
High
High
N/A
N/A

30
100
100
90
20
0
310
340

Risk

Hours

N/A

50

Annual
High
High
New
Medium
Medium
Medium
Medium
N/A
N/A

50
15
100
80
70
60
60
50
50
30
10
525
575

Economy, Innovation and Growth
Audit Type
Audit Area
Advice and
Consultancy

General Advice and Consultancy

Total Advice and Consultancy
Commercial Contracts
PSP/TNRP
Electrical Inspection
Fire Safety
Water Safety and Legionella
Passenger Lifts
Assurance
Asbestos Management
Review
Gas Servicing
Housing Growth and Development
Transport Strategy
Economic Growth
Audit Follow Up Contingency
Audits brought forward from 2020/21
Total Assurance Review
Total Audit Hours
Office of The Chief Executive
Audit Type
Audit Area
Advice and
Consultancy

General Advice and Consultancy

Total Advice and Consultancy
Partnership Arrangements
Grants to Voluntary Organisations
Assurance
Review
Audit Follow Up Contingency
Audits brought forward from 2020/21
Total Assurance Review
Total Audit Hours

Page 62

Risk

Hours

N/A

50

Annual
High
High
High
High
High
High
High
New
Medium
Medium
N/A
N/A

50
80
60
70
70
70
70
80
80
60
50
60
30
5
785
835

Risk

Hours

N/A

30

High
New
N/A
N/A

30
70
50
20
0
140
170

Housing, Environment & Healthy Communities
Audit Type
Audit Area
Advice and
Consultancy

Assurance
Review

General Advice and Consultancy

N/A

130

High

130
100

High

60

High
High
High
High
Medium
Medium
Medium
Medium
Medium

70
100
80
80
80
50
90
50
100

Information Security Management and Governance

Medium

60

Medium
Medium
N/A
N/A

70
80
80
181
1,331
1,461

Risk

Hours

N/A

350

Annual
High
High
High
High
High

350
70
40
60
60
75
75

High

100

High
High
High

120
80
70

Resources and Digital
Audit Type
Audit Area

Assurance
Review

Hours

Total Advice and Consultancy
Waste Management Partnership
Housing Risk Management and Business
Continuity Arrangements
Health and Safety
Rent Arrears and Rent Collection
Repairs and Maintenance
Procurement
Transport
Facilities Management
Housing IT Audit
Governance
Keelman Homes

Adaptations and Housing Renovation Grants
Stores
Audit Follow Up Contingency
Audits brought forward from 2020/21
Total Assurance Review
Total Audit Hours

Advice and
Consultancy

Risk

General Advice and Consultancy
Total Advice and Consultancy
Debtors Write off
Counter Fraud Arrangements
Performance Indicators and Data Quality
Risk Management and Business Continuity
Business Rates
Council Tax
Local Council Tax Support Scheme and Housing
Benefits
Corporate Creditors
Leasing
Service Debtors

Page 63

Treasury Management
Service Creditors
Service Payroll and Human Resources
Administration
Main Accounting System
Capital Accounting System and Programme
Housing Revenue Account (HRA)
Annual Governance Statement Assurances
VAT Arrangements
Corporate Debtors and Income
Corporate Payroll and Human Resources System
IT Security
Employee Administration
Budgetary Control
IT Resilience
IT Systems Monitoring
IT Risk Management
Equalities
Recovery of Benefit Overpayments
Children's Direct Payments
Disclosure and Barring Service Checks
BACS
Fees and Charges
Insurance
Audit Follow Up Contingency
Audits brought forward from 2020/21
Total Assurance Review
Total Audit Hours
Total Group and Service Hours

Page 64

High
High

40
70

High

70

High
High
High
High
High
High
High
High
High
High
Medium
Medium
Medium
Medium
Medium
Medium
Medium
Medium
Medium
Medium
N/A
N/A

70
100
80
100
40
100
110
90
80
40
90
90
90
70
60
75
70
40
40
70
100
147
2,682
3,032
9,475

Agenda Item 6
Audit and Standards Committee
26 April 2021

Title of Report:

External Auditor: Audit Strategy Memorandum Year
Ending 31 March 2021

Report of:

Darren Collins, Strategic Director, Resources and
Digital

Purpose of the Report
1 This report requests that the Committee note the external auditor’s Audit
Strategy Memorandum for the year ended 31 March 2021.
Background
2 The report sets out:









Engagement and responsibilities summary
The audit engagement team
Audit scope, approach and timeline
Significant risks and other key judgements areas
Value for Money
Fees for audit and other services
Commitment to independence
Materiality and misstatements

3 The external auditor’s report is attached at Appendix A.
Recommendation
4 The Committee is requested to note the contents of the external auditor’s
Audit Strategy Memorandum.

Contact: Natalie Porthouse ext.3723

Page 65

This page is intentionally left blank

Audit Strategy Memorandum

Page 67

Contents
01

Engagement and responsibilities summary

02

Your audit engagement team

03

Audit scope, approach and timeline

04

Significant risks and other key judgement areas

05

Value for Money

06

Fees for audit and other services

Page 68

07

Our commitment to independence

08

Materiality and misstatements
Appendix – Key communication points

This document is to be regarded as confidential to Gateshead Metropolitan Borough Council. It has been prepared for the sole use of Audit and Standards and Accounts Committee as the appropriate sub-committees charged
with governance. No responsibility is accepted to any other person in respect of the whole or part of its contents. Our written consent must first be obtained before this document, or any part of it, is disclosed to a third party.

2

Audit and Standards and Accounts Committee Members
Gateshead Metropolitan Borough Council
Gateshead Council
Civic Centre
Regent Street
Gateshead
NE8 1HH

Mazars LLP
Bank Chambers
26 Mosley Street
Newcastle upon Tyne
NE1 1DF

24 March 2021
Dear Members

Audit Strategy Memorandum – year ending 31 March 2021

•

Page 69

We are pleased to present our Audit Strategy Memorandum for Gateshead Metropolitan Borough Council and Group (the Council and Group) for the year ending 31 March 2021. The purpose of this document is to summarise our
audit approach, highlight significant audit risks and areas of key judgements and provide you with the details of our audit team. As it is a fundamental requirement that an auditor is, and is seen to be, independent of its clients,
section 8 of this document also summarises our considerations and conclusions on our independence as auditors. We consider two-way communication with you to be key to a successful audit and important in:

•

providing you with constructive observations arising from the audit process; and

•

ensuring that we, as external auditors, gain an understanding of your attitude and views in respect of the internal and external operational, financial, compliance and other risks facing Gateshead Metropolitan Borough Council
which may affect the audit, including the likelihood of those risks materialising and how they are monitored and managed.

•

reaching a mutual understanding of the scope of the audit and the responsibilities of each of us;
sharing information to assist each of us to fulfil our respective responsibilities;

With that in mind, we see this document, which has been prepared following our initial planning discussions with management, as being the basis for a discussion around our audit approach, any questions, concerns or input you
may have on our approach or role as auditor. This document also contains an appendix that outlines our key communications with you during the course of the audit.
Client service is extremely important to us and we strive to provide technical excellence with the highest level of service quality, together with continuous improvement to exceed your expectations so, if you have any concerns or
comments about this document or audit approach, please contact me on 07813 752 053.
Yours faithfully

Cameron Waddell
Mazars LLP
Mazars LLP is the UK firm of Mazars, an integrated international advisory and accountancy organisation. Mazars LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales with registered number OC308299 and with its registered office at Tower Bridge House, St Katharine’s Way,
London E1W 1DD.
We are registered to carry on audit work in the UK by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Details about our audit registration can be viewed at www.auditregister.org.uk under reference number C001139861. VAT number: 839 8356 73

Section 01:
Engagement and
responsibilities summary
Page 70

1. Engagement and responsibilities summary
Overview of engagement
We are appointed to perform the external audit of Gateshead Metropolitan Borough Council and Group (the Council and Group) for the year to 31 March 2021. The scope of our engagement is set out in the Statement of
Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies, issued by Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) available from the PSAA website: https://www.psaa.co.uk/managing-audit-quality/statement-of-responsibilities-of-auditorsand-audited-bodies/. Our responsibilities are principally derived from the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (the 2014 Act) and the Code of Audit Practice issued by the National Audit Office (NAO), as outlined below.

Audit opinion

Page 71

We are responsible for forming and expressing an opinion on the financial statements. Our
audit does not relieve management or the Audit and Standards Committee and Accounts
Committee, as those charged with governance, of their responsibilities.

Fraud

Going concern

As part of our audit procedures in relation to fraud we are required to enquire of those
charged with governance, including key management and internal audit, as to their
knowledge of instances of fraud, the risk of fraud and their views on internal controls that
mitigate the fraud risks. In accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK), we
plan and perform our audit so as to obtain reasonable assurance that the financial
statements taken as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud
or error. However our audit should not be relied upon to identify all such misstatements.

The responsibility for safeguarding assets and for the prevention and detection of fraud,
error and non-compliance with law or regulations rests with both those charged with
governance and management. This includes establishing and maintaining internal controls
over reliability of financial reporting.

The Council and Group is required to prepare its financial statements on a going concern
basis by the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting. The Strategic Director,
Resources and Digital is responsible for the assessment of whether is it appropriate for the
Council to prepare it’s accounts on a going concern basis. As auditors, we are required to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding, and conclude on the appropriateness
of the Strategic Director, Resources and Digital’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements and the adequacy of disclosures
made.

Value for money

Reporting to the NAO

We are also responsible for forming a conclusion on the arrangements that the Council and
Group has in place to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.
We discuss our approach to Value for Money work further in section 5 of this report.

We report to the NAO on the consistency of the Council and Group’s financial statements
with its Whole of Government Accounts (WGA) submission.

Electors’ rights
The 2014 Act requires us to give an elector, or any representative of the elector, the opportunity to question us about the accounting records of the Council and Group and consider any objection made to the
accounts. We also have a broad range of reporting responsibilities and powers that are unique to the audit of local authorities in the United Kingdom.

Engagement and
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key
judgement areas

Value for money

Fees for audit and
other services

Our commitment to
independence

Materiality and
misstatements

Appendices

5

Section 02:
Your audit engagement team
Page 72

2. Your audit engagement team

Page 73

Cameron Waddell

Diane Harold

David Hasnip

Partner and Audit Engagement Lead

Engagement Manager

Assistant Manager and Team Leader

cameron.waddell@mazars.co.uk

diane.harold@mazars.co.uk

david.Hasnip@mazars.co.uk

0781 375 2053

07971 513 174

07387 242 038

In addition, an engagement quality control reviewer has been appointed for this engagement.

Engagement and
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key
judgement areas

Value for money

Fees for audit and
other services

Our commitment to
independence

Materiality and
misstatements

Appendices

7

Section 03:
Audit scope, approach and timeline
Page 74

8

3. Audit scope, approach and timeline
Audit scope
Our audit approach is designed to provide an audit that complies with all professional requirements.
Our audit of the financial statements will be conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK), relevant ethical and professional standards, our own audit approach and in accordance with the terms of our
engagement. Our work is focused on those aspects of your business which we consider to have a higher risk of material misstatement, such as those impacted by management judgement and estimation, application of new
accounting standards, changes of accounting policy, changes to operations or areas which have been found to contain material errors in the past.

Audit approach
Our audit approach is a risk based approach primarily driven by the risks we consider to result in a higher risk of material misstatement of the financial statements. Once we have completed our risk assessment, we develop our
audit strategy and design audit procedures in response to this assessment.

Page 75

If we conclude that appropriately designed controls are in place then we may plan to test and rely upon these controls. If we decide controls are not appropriately designed, or we decide it would be more efficient to do so, we may
take a wholly substantive approach to our audit testing. Substantive procedures are audit procedures designed to detect material misstatements at the assertion level and comprise: tests of details (of classes of transactions,
account balances, and disclosures); and substantive analytical procedures. Irrespective of the assessed risks of material misstatement, which take into account our evaluation of the operating effectiveness of controls, we are
required to design and perform substantive procedures for each material class of transactions, account balance, and disclosure.
Our audit will be planned and performed so as to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement and give a true and fair view. The concept of materiality and how we define a
misstatement is explained in more detail in section 8.
The diagram on the next page outlines the procedures we perform at the different stages of the audit.

Engagement and
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key
judgement areas

Value for money

Fees for audit and
other services

Our commitment to
independence

Materiality and
misstatements

Appendices

9

3. Audit scope, approach and timeline

Planning February-March 2021

Interim February-April 2021

•

Planning visit and developing our understanding of the Council

•

Documenting systems and controls

•

Initial opinion and value for money risk assessments

•

Performing walkthroughs

•

Considering proposed accounting treatments and accounting policies

•

Interim controls testing including tests of IT general controls

•

Developing the audit strategy and planning the audit work to be performed

•

Early substantive testing of transactions

•

Agreeing timetable and deadlines

•

Reassessment of audit plan and revision if necessary

•

Preliminary analytical review

Page 76

Completion July-September 2021*

Fieldwork July-September 2021*

•

Final review and disclosure checklist of financial statements

•

Final partner and EQCR review

•

Accounting and Technical Service review of the financial
statements

•

Agreeing content of letter of representation

•

Reporting to the Audit and Standards Committee

•

Reviewing subsequent events

•

Signing the auditor’s report

•

Receiving and reviewing draft financial statements

•

Reassessment of audit plan and revision if necessary

•

Executing the strategy starting with significant risks and high risk areas

•

Communicating progress and issues

•

Clearance meeting

* as per comments to the left

* subject to receipt of Pension Fund auditor assurance

Engagement and
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key
judgement areas

Value for money

Fees for audit and
other services

Our commitment to
independence

Materiality and
misstatements

Appendices

10

3. Audit scope, approach and timeline
Group audit approach
In line with the requirements of the CIPFA Code of Practice, the Council has considered its interests in other entities and determined that group accounts are required which will consolidate its interest in The Gateshead Housing
Company only. This section sets out the planned work in respect of those entities which we refer to here as components.
Group materiality
Our assessment of group materiality is set out in section 8.
We assess the significance of the component as part of determining the level of work required. In assessing the significance of components, we consider a range of quantitative and qualitative factors including:
•

whether a component exceeds a minimum of 15% of key benchmarks (income, expenditure, assets and liabilities);

•

whether any financial statement area (FSA) is greater than 15% of the relevant FSA in the consolidated accounts and greater than performance materiality; and

•

whether there are any risks of material misstatement in the components likely to result in material misstatement in the group financial statements.

Page 77

Our assessment is summarised in the table below.

Entity

Nature of component / ownership

Auditor

Significant in
terms of
benchmarks?

Risks of material misstatement?

Scope / Commentary

Gateshead
Metropolitan
Borough Council

Parent – local authority.

Mazars
LLP

Yes

Yes

Full – ultimate parent.

The Gateshead
Housing Company
(TGHC)

Arms length management organisation
(ALMO): 100% owned Subsidiary
100% owned by the Council. The
principal activity of the Company is the
day to day management, maintenance
and improvement of the Council’s
housing stock.

Yes

Pensions liability balance upon consolidation was £50.7m or 9% of the
overall Group pensions liability of £583.4m as at 31 March 2020 and is
relevant to the significant pensions risk already identified.
Therefore, reliance on the component auditor planned, with full scope
audit review.

Engagement and
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

KPMG
LLP

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

No

Significant risks and key
judgement areas

Value for money

Fees for audit and
other services

Our commitment to
independence

Materiality and
misstatements

Appendices

11

3. Audit scope, approach and timeline
Group audit approach (continued)
Nature and scope of planned work
The table below sets out the estimated proportion of each component, relative to the overall Group, as well as the nature and scope of planned work. Note these are estimates and we will update our assessment for any significant
changes. This work is in addition to our review of group-wide controls and the consolidation process.
Nature of work
Planned procedures are split into the following categories:
• full scope audit;
• limited or specific review; and
• other audit procedures, including group analytical procedures.

The component being treated as ‘significant’ and subject to a full scope audit review is:
• The Gateshead Housing Company (TGHC).

Page 78

Analysis of components

Component

% of assets

% of liabilities

% of income

% of expenditure

Nature of work

Scope of work

Gateshead Metropolitan
Borough Council

99.21%

95.69%

91.20%

90.70%

Full scope audit

Not applicable – this is the ‘parent’

The Gateshead Housing
Company (TGHC)

0.79%

4.31%

8.80%

9.30%

Full scope audit

Full scope audit review.
Pensions liability is material.

100%

100%

100%

100%

Engagement and
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key
judgement areas

Value for money

Fees for audit and
other services

Our commitment to
independence

Materiality and
misstatements

Appendices

12

3. Audit scope, approach and timeline
Reliance on internal audit

Service organisations

Where possible we will seek to utilise the work performed by internal audit to modify the nature, extent and
timing of our audit procedures. We will meet with internal audit to discuss the progress and findings of their
work prior to the commencement of our controls evaluation procedures.

International Auditing Standards (UK) (ISAs) define service organisations as third party organisations that
provide services to the Council that are part of its information systems relevant to financial reporting. We are
required to obtain an understanding of the services provided by service organisations as well as evaluating the
design and implementation of controls over those services. There are no material service organisations to
consider for this Council.

Where we intend to rely on the work on internal audit, we will evaluate the work performed by your internal audit
team and perform our own audit procedures to determine its adequacy for our audit.

Management’s and our experts
Management makes use of experts in specific areas when preparing the Council’s financial statements. We
also use experts to assist us to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence on specific items of account.

Page 79

Item of account

Management’s expert

Our expert

Defined benefit net
liability

AON Hewitt (Actuary)

We use the National Audit Office’s (NAO) consulting
actuary (PWC) to provide us with assurance over the
main assumptions used by your Actuary.

Property, plant and
equipment

BNP Paribas Real
Estate (UK)

We will take into account relevant information which is
available from third parties.

Shared Waste Private
Finance Initiative (PFI)
facility

Hilco Appraisal Limited

We will commission work from our own expert
(Cluttons), given the valuation of the waste facility is a
specialised area.

Link Asset Services

We do not typically engage an audit expert to assess
the reasonableness for your expert’s financial
instrument valuation estimates. Where this is required
we will engage our own internal experts.

Financial instrument
disclosures

Engagement and
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key
judgement areas

Value for money

Fees for audit and
other services

Our commitment to
independence

Materiality and
misstatements

Appendices

13

Section 04:
Significant risks and other key
judgement areas
Page 80

14

4. Significant risks and other key judgement areas
Following the risk assessment approach discussed in section 3 of this document, we have identified relevant
risks to the audit of financial statements. The risks that we identify are categorised as significant, enhanced or
standard. The definitions of the level of risk rating are given below:

Significant risk
A significant risk is an identified and assessed risk of material misstatement that, in the auditor’s judgment,
requires special audit consideration. For any significant risk, the auditor shall obtain an understanding of the
entity’s controls, including control activities relevant to that risk.

Enhanced risk
An enhanced risk is an area of higher assessed risk of material misstatement (‘RMM’) at audit assertion level
other than a significant risk. Enhanced risks require additional consideration but does not rise to the level of a
significant risk, these include but may not be limited to:

•

Page 81

•

key areas of management judgement, including accounting estimates which are material but are not
considered to give rise to a significant risk of material misstatement; and
other audit assertion risks arising from significant events or transactions that occurred during the period.

Standard risk
This is related to relatively routine, non-complex transactions that tend to be subject to systematic processing
and require little management judgement. Although it is considered that there is a risk of material misstatement
(RMM), there are no elevated or special factors related to the nature, the likely magnitude of the potential
misstatements or the likelihood of the risk occurring.

Engagement and
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key
judgement areas

Value for money

Fees for audit and
other services

Our commitment to
independence

Materiality and
misstatements

Appendices

15

4. Significant risks and other key judgement areas
Summary risk assessment
The summary risk assessment, illustrated in the table below, highlights those risks which we deem to be significant
and other enhanced risks in respect of the Council and Group. We have summarised our audit response to these
risks on the next page.

High

3

2

Financial impact

Page 82

1

Management override of controls (Council and Group)

2

Net defined benefit liability valuation (Council and Group)

3

Valuation of property, plant and equipment (Council only)

4

Valuation of long and short term debtors (Council only)

5

COVID-19 grant income recognition (Council only)

6

Valuation and completeness of provisions (Council only)

1

4

6

5

Low

Low

Key:

Likelihood

Significant risk

Engagement and
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

High

Enhanced risk / significant management judgement

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key
judgement areas

Value for money

Fees for audit and
other services

Our commitment to
independence

Materiality and
misstatements

Appendices

16

4. Significant risks and other key judgement areas
Specific identified audit risks and planned testing strategy
We have presented below in more detail the reasons for the risk assessment highlighted above, and also our testing approach with respect to significant risks. An audit is a dynamic process, should we change our view of risk or
approach to address the identified risks during the course of our audit, we will report this to Audit and Standards Committee and Accounts Committee.

Significant risks
Description
1

Fraud

Error

Judgement

Management override of controls

Planned response

Page 83

We plan to address the management override of controls risk through
performing audit work over accounting estimates, journal entries and
significant transactions outside the normal course of business or otherwise
unusual.

This is a mandatory significant risk on all audits due to the
unpredictable way in which such override could occur.
Management at various levels within an organisation are in a unique
position to perpetrate fraud because of their ability to manipulate
accounting records and prepare fraudulent financial statements by
overriding controls that otherwise appear to be operating effectively.
Due to the unpredictable way in which such override could occur
there is a risk of material misstatement due to fraud on
all audits.

Engagement and
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key
judgement areas

Value for money

Fees for audit and
other services

Our commitment to
independence

Materiality and
misstatements

Appendices

17

4. Significant risks and other key judgement areas
Significant risks

Description
2

Fraud

Error

Judgement

Planned response

Page 84

Net defined benefit liability valuation

We will:

The financial statements contain material pension entries in respect
of the retirement benefits.

•

critically evaluate the Council’s arrangements (including relevant controls)
for making estimates in relation to pension entries within the financial
statements; and

•

challenge the reasonableness of the Actuary’s assumptions that underpin
the relevant entries made in the financial statements, through the use of
an expert commissioned by the National Audit Office;

•

critically assess the competency, objectivity and independence of the
Actuary;

•

liaise with the auditors of the Pension Fund to gain assurance that the
overall IAS19 procedures and controls in place at the Pension Fund are
operating effectively;

•

compare assumptions to expected ranges, using information provided by
the consulting actuary engaged by the National Audit Office;

•

agree data in the Actuary’s valuation report for accounting purposes to
the relevant accounting entries and disclosures in the Council’s financial
statements; and

•

critically review the component auditor’s work in respect of The
Gateshead Housing Company’s pensions liability which is consolidated in
the group financial statements.

The calculation of these pension figures, both assets and liabilities,
can be subject to significant volatility and includes estimates based
upon a complex interaction of actuarial assumptions. This results in
an increased risk of material misstatement.

Engagement and
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key
judgement areas

Value for money

Fees for audit and
other services

Our commitment to
independence

Materiality and
misstatements

Appendices

18

4. Significant risks and other key judgement areas
Significant risks
Description
3

Fraud

Error

Judgement

Planned response

Page 85

Valuation of property, plant and equipment

We will:

The financial statements contain material entries on the balance
sheet as well as material disclosure notes in relation to the Council’s
holding of property, plant and equipment (including the Council’s PFI
shared waste facility).

•

critically assess the Council’s arrangements for ensuring that property,
plant and equipment valuations are reasonable and not materially
misstated;

•

critically assess the basis of valuations, using third party trend data where
appropriate, as part of our challenge of the reasonableness of the
valuations provided by Valuers, including the PFI shared waste facility;

•

consider the competence, skills and experience of the Valuers and the
instructions issued to the Valuers;

•

critically review the output from our own expert’s assessment of the
valuation of the PFI shared waste facility;

•

substantively test capital expenditure additions and disposals during the
year;

•

substantively test the Council’s property, plant and equipment to gain
assurance that they exist and are owned by the Council;

•

substantively test revaluations, including critically reviewing the Council’s
own consideration of assets not revalued in the year and why they are not
materially misstated;

•

critically consider any material uncertainties expressed by the Valuers
used by the Council and consider any implications on our audit work; and

•

where necessary, perform further audit procedures on individual assets to
ensure the basis of valuations is appropriate.

The Council employs valuation experts to provide information on
valuations, however there remains a high degree of estimation
uncertainty associated with the (re)valuations of property, plant and
equipment due to the significant judgements and number of
variables involved.
The risk has increased as a result of the economic downturn arising
from COVID-19.

As a result of the pandemic, Valuers included material uncertainty
statements in their 2019/20 valuation reports, which in turn led to
local authorities disclosing this material uncertainty in their financial
statements. We will consider the impact of any such disclosures as
part of our audit work.

Engagement and
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key
judgement areas

Value for money

Fees for audit and
other services

Our commitment to
independence

Materiality and
misstatements

Appendices

19

4. Significant risks and other key judgement areas
Significant risks
Description
4

Fraud

Error

Judgement

Valuation of current and non-current debtors

We will:

There is an increased risk that the valuation of debtors, both current
and non-current, will be impacted by the economic downturn.

•

critically review the basis of valuation of current and non-current debtors,
including the Council’s assessment of expected credit losses (the latter
including the long-term loan notes to Newcastle Airport);

•

critically review the adequacy of the impairment of debtors allowance;

The Council has provided for the potential impairment of short-term
debtors which may also be impacted by the economic downturn.

•

challenge the assumptions made by the Council, in particular in light of
the economic downturn.

COVID-19 grant recognition

We will:

Throughout 2020/21, the Government has provided substantial
sums of financial support to local authorities.

•

critically review the Council’s approach in determining whether they have
been acting as an agent or principal in relation to COVID 19 grants;

•

substantively test COVID 19 grant income recorded in the ledger to grant
allocations and notifications, including whether the appropriate
accounting treatment has been followed (e.g. whether there are
conditions attached and whether the grant amount has been fully spent).

The Council’s non-current debtors also includes loans to other
bodies and Newcastle Airport.

Page 86
5

Planned response

Use of management judgement will be required to determine if the
Council is acting as an agent or principal in relation to the
administration of these grants and in relation to determining whether
the recognition criteria have been met. The recognition criteria can
also differ, depending on whether there are conditions attached or
not, as well as whether the grant has been fully spent.
We have therefore identified accounting for the completeness,
accuracy, classification and valuation and allocation of this income
as a significant risk.

Engagement and
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key
judgement areas

Value for money

Fees for audit and
other services

Our commitment to
independence

Materiality and
misstatements

Appendices

20

4. Significant risks and other key judgement areas
Other key areas of management judgement and enhanced risks
Description
6

Fraud

Error

Judgement

Planned response
We will:

The Council provides for probable liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount, via its current and non-current provisions. Provision for
probable liabilities is based on management’s assessment of the
liabilities and their expected timing of settlement and / or the
amounts. As this is subject to management estimation and other
assumptions, we have highlighted this as an enhanced risk.

•

substantively test provisions;

•

critically review the assumptions made by management;

•

critically review contingent liabilities and whether any should be classified
as provisions; and

•

assess the completeness of provisions, taking into account our wider
knowledge of the Council, from review of minutes and agendas,
discussions with senior officers and the Monitoring Officer.

Page 87

Enhanced risk: valuation and completeness of provisions

Engagement and
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key
judgement areas

Value for money

Fees for audit and
other services

Our commitment to
independence

Materiality and
misstatements

Appendices

21

Section 05:
Value for Money
Page 88

22

5. Value for Money
The framework for Value for Money work
We are required to form a view as to whether the Council has made proper arrangements for securing
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. The NAO issues guidance to auditors that
underpins the work we are required to carry out in order to form our view, and sets out the overall criterion
and sub-criteria that we are required to consider.
The new Code of Audit Practice (the Code) has changed the way in which we report our findings in relation
to Value for Money (VFM) arrangements from 2020/21. Whilst we are still required to be satisfied that the
Council has proper arrangements in place, we will now report by exception in our auditor’s report where we
have identified significant weakness in those arrangements. This is a significant change to the requirements
under the previous Code which required us to give a conclusion on the Council’s arrangements as part of
our auditor’s report.
Under the new Code, the key output of our work on VFM arrangements will be a commentary on those
arrangements which will form part of the Auditor’s Annual Report.

Page 89

Specified reporting criteria
The Code requires us to structure our commentary to report under three specified criteria:
1.
2.

3.

Obtaining an understanding of the Council’s arrangements for each
specified reporting criteria. Relevant information sources will include:

Planning and risk
assessment

Additional risk
based
procedures and
evaluation

•

NAO guidance and supporting information;

•

information from internal and external sources including regulators;

•

knowledge from previous audits and other audit work undertaken in the
year; and

•

interviews and discussions with staff and Members.

Where our planning work identifies risks of significant weaknesses, we will
undertake additional procedures to determine whether there is a significant
weakness.

Financial sustainability – how the Council plans and manages its resources to ensure it can continue
to deliver its services
Governance – how the Council ensures that it makes informed decisions and properly manages its
risks

We will provide a summary of the work we have undertaken and our
judgements against each of the specified reporting criteria as part of our
commentary on arrangements. This will form part of the Auditor’s Annual
Report.

Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness – how the Council uses information about its costs
and performance to improve the way it manages and delivers its services

Reporting

Our approach
Our work falls into three primary phases as outlined opposite. We need to gather sufficient evidence to
support our commentary on the Council’s arrangements and to identify and report on any significant
weaknesses in arrangements. Where significant weaknesses are identified we are required to report these
to the Council and make recommendations for improvement. Such recommendations can be made at any
point during the audit cycle and we are not expected to wait until issuing our overall commentary to do so.
Engagement and
responsibilities
summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Extended
auditor’s report

Significant risks and
key judgement areas

Value for money

Our commentary will also highlight:
•

significant weaknesses identified and our recommendations for
improvement; and

•

emerging issues or other matters that do not represent significant
weaknesses but still require attention from the Council.

Fees for audit and
other services

Our commitment to
independence

Materiality and
misstatements

Appendices

23

5. Value for Money
Identified risks of significant weaknesses in arrangements
The NAO’s guidance requires us to carry out work at the planning stage to understand the Council’s arrangements and to identify risks that significant weaknesses in arrangements may exist.
Due to the late release of the NAO’s Auditor Guidance Note and supporting information to auditors, we have not yet fully completed our planning and risk assessment work. We will report any changes to our initial risk
assessment to the Audit and Standards Committee and Accounts Committee.
The table below outlines the risk of significant weaknesses in arrangements that we have identified to date.

Risk of significant weakness in arrangements

Page 90
1

Financial
sustainability

Governance

Improving the
3Es

Planned procedures

Sustainable resource deployment – financial pressures

We will review budget monitoring and reporting.

The Council faces financial pressures from reduced funding and
continues to identify plans to deliver future savings and
improvements, including alternative models of service delivery.
Without robust budgetary control and delivery of its action plans, the
Council’s financial resilience and service performance could
deteriorate.

We will also consider the adequacy of plans that are developed to deliver
savings and improvements.

Engagement and
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

We will also consider the latest update of the Council’s medium-term
financial strategy.

Significant risks and key
judgement areas

Value for money

Fees for audit and
other services

Our commitment to
independence

Materiality and
misstatements

Appendices

24

Section 06:
Fees for audit and other services

Page 91

25

6. Fees for audit and other services

Fees for work as the Council’s appointed auditor

Fees for non-PSAA work

At this stage of the audit we are not planning any divergence from the scale fees set by PSAA, subject to
consideration by Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited of any recurring fee increases arising from the 2019/20
audit, in relation to testing of:

In addition to the fees outlined above in relation to our appointment by PSAA, we have been separately engaged
by the Council to carry out additional work as set out in the table below. Before agreeing to undertake any
additional work we consider whether there are any actual, potential or perceived threats to our independence.
Further information about our responsibilities in relation to independence is provided in section 7.

•

property, plant and equipment valuations; and

•

audit work in respect of the net defined benefits liability.

Page 92

•

Area of work
Code audit work – scale fee
Additional fee in respect of the audit of the
group consolidation
Additional work in response to regulatory
recommendations to increase level of audit
work on the valuation of property plant and
equipment
Additional work in response to regulatory
recommendations to increase level of audit
work on defined benefit liability schemes.

2020/21 proposed fee

2019/20 fee

£100,329

£100,329

£9,724

£9,724

To be agreed

To be agreed

To be agreed

To be agreed

Area of work

2020/21 proposed fee

2019/20 fee

Assurance Services: Housing Benefit Subsidy

£10,000*

£10,000

Assurance Services: Teachers’ Pension return

£4,000*

£4,000

Assurance Services: Pooling of Housing Capital
Receipts

£2,500*

£2,450

*estimated fees, subject to agreement

* an additional fee in respect of 2019/20 work has been calculated and discussed with officers; the next stage is
consideration and approval by Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited.

Engagement and
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key
judgement areas

Value for money

Fees for audit and
other services

Our commitment to
independence

Materiality and
misstatements

Appendices

26

Section 07:
Our commitment to independence

Page 93

27

7. Our commitment to independence
We are committed to independence and are required by the Financial Reporting Council to confirm to you at
least annually in writing that we comply with the FRC’s Ethical Standard. In addition, we communicate any
matters or relationship which we believe may have a bearing on our independence or the objectivity of the
audit team.

We confirm, as at the date of this document, that the engagement team and others in the firm as appropriate,
Mazars LLP are independent and comply with relevant ethical requirements. However, if at any time you have
concerns or questions about our integrity, objectivity or independence please discuss these with Cameron
Waddell in the first instance.

Based on the information provided by you and our own internal procedures to safeguard our independence as
auditors, we confirm that in our professional judgement there are no relationships between us and any of our
related or subsidiary entities, and you and your related entities creating any unacceptable threats to our
independence within the regulatory or professional requirements governing us as your auditors.

Prior to the provision of any non-audit services Cameron Waddell will undertake appropriate procedures to
consider and fully assess the impact that providing the service may have on our auditor independence.

We have policies and procedures in place which are designed to ensure that we carry out our work with
integrity, objectivity and independence. These policies include:

•
•

•

all partners and staff are required to complete an annual independence declaration;

Area of work

Perceived threat

Safeguards and commentary

all new partners and staff are required to complete an independence confirmation and also complete
computer based ethical training;

Assurance Services: Housing
Benefits Subsidy return

Self-review threat

No safeguards required. The fee for this work
is neither significant to Mazars LLP nor the
Council/Group.

Assurance Services:
Teachers’ Pensions Return

Self-review threat

No safeguards required. The fee for this work
is neither significant to Mazars LLP nor the
Council/Group.

Assurance Services: Pooling
of Housing Capital Receipts
return

Self-review threat

No safeguards required. The fee for this work
is neither significant to Mazars LLP nor the
Council/Group.

Page 94

•

Any emerging independence threats and associated identified safeguards will be communicated in our Audit
Completion Report. Principal threats to our independence and identified associated safeguards in relation to the
non-audit work listed in section 6, are summarised below.

rotation policies covering audit engagement partners and other key members of the audit team; and

use by managers and partners of our client and engagement acceptance system which requires all nonaudit services to be approved in advance by the audit engagement partner.

Engagement and
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key
judgement areas

Value for money

Fees for audit and
other services

Our commitment to
independence

Materiality and
misstatements

Appendices

28

Section 08:
Materiality and other misstatements

Page 95

29

8. Materiality and misstatements
Summary of initial materiality thresholds
Threshold

Materiality

Group initial threshold
£’000s

Council initial threshold
£’000s

12,958

12,952

9,719

9,714

389

389

Overall materiality
Performance materiality

Page 96

Trivial threshold for errors to be reported
to Audit and Standards Committee and
Accounts Committee

Summary of specific materiality thresholds
Item of account

Materiality is an expression of the relative significance or importance of a particular matter in the context of
financial statements as a whole.
Misstatements in financial statements are considered to be material if they, individually or in aggregate, could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial
statements.
Judgements on materiality are made in light of surrounding circumstances and are affected by the size and
nature of a misstatement, or a combination of both. Judgements about materiality are based on consideration of
the common financial information needs of users as a group and not on specific individual users.

The assessment of what is material is a matter of professional judgement and is affected by our perception of
the financial information needs of the users of the financial statements. In making our assessment we assume
that users:
•

have a reasonable knowledge of business, economic activities and accounts;

•

have a willingness to study the information in the financial statements with reasonable diligence;

Basis

Specific materiality

•

understand that financial statements are prepared, presented and audited to levels of materiality;

Officers’ remuneration (Council)

10% of total

£95,000

•

recognise the uncertainties inherent in the measurement of amounts based on the use of estimates,
judgement and the consideration of future events; and

Officers’ remuneration (Group)

10% of total

£109,000

•

will make reasonable economic decisions on the basis of the information in the financial statements.

Bandings (£5,000)

£5,000 banding

Exit packages (termination benefits)

10% of total

£122,000

Whilst planning, we make judgements about the size of misstatements which we consider to be material and which
provides a basis for determining the nature, timing and extent of risk assessment procedures, identifying and
assessing the risk of material misstatement and determining the nature, timing and extent of further audit procedures.

Members’ allowances and expenses
(Council only)

10% of total

£124,000

The materiality determined at the planning stage does not necessarily establish an amount below which
uncorrected misstatements, either individually or in aggregate, will be considered as immaterial.

Officers’ remuneration (bandings table –
Council only)

Engagement and
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key
judgement areas

We consider materiality whilst planning and performing our audit based on quantitative and qualitative factors.

Value for money

Fees for audit and
other services

Our commitment to
independence

Materiality and
misstatements

Appendices

30

8. Materiality and misstatements
Materiality (continued)
We revise materiality for the financial statements as our audit progresses should we become aware of
information that would have caused us to determine a different amount had we been aware of that information
at the planning stage.
Our provisional materiality is set based on a benchmark of 2019/20 gross expenditure at the surplus/deficit on
the provision of services level per the draft financial statements. We will identify a figure for materiality but
identify separate levels for procedures design to detect individual errors, and also a level above which all
identified errors will be reported to Audit and Standards Committee and Accounts.
We consider that the gross expenditure at the net cost of services level remains the key focus of users of the
financial statements and, as such, we base our materiality levels around this benchmark.

Page 97

We expect to set a materiality threshold at 2% of the benchmark based on the 2019/20 draft financial
statements. Based on 2019/20 draft financial statements, we anticipate the overall materiality for the year
ending 31 March 2021 for the Group to be £12.958m and the Council £12.952m (prior year planning materiality
was £14.274m and £14.173m for the Group and Council respectively).
After setting initial materiality, we continue to monitor materiality throughout the audit to ensure that it is set at
an appropriate level.

and Accounts Committee that is consistent with the level of triviality that we consider would not need to be
accumulated, because we expect that the accumulation of such amounts would not have a material effect on
the financial statements. Based on our preliminary assessment of overall materiality, our proposed triviality
threshold is £389,000 for the Council and Group’s financial statements based on 3% of overall materiality. If
you have any queries about this please do not hesitate to raise these with Cameron Waddell.

Group materiality for components
In the context of a group audit, materiality is established for both the group financial statements as a whole and
for the financial information of components. Component materiality is determined for those components whose
financial information will be audited as part of the group audit.
•

The Gateshead Housing Company (TGHC) component materiality: calculated as £1.2 million, based on the
prior year estimate at this stage. Where a component is subject to audit itself, use can be made however of
the component auditor’s materiality, as long as it is lower than our calculated component materiality. This is
anticipated to be the case for TGHC, therefore, we will make use of their auditor’s calculation of materiality.

Reporting to the Audit and Standards Committee and Accounts Committee
The following three types of audit differences will be presented to Audit and Standards Committee and
Accounts Committee:

Performance Materiality

•

summary of adjusted audit differences;

Performance materiality is the amount or amounts set by the auditor at less than materiality for the financial
statements as a whole to reduce, to an appropriately low level, the probability that the aggregate of uncorrected
and undetected misstatements exceeds materiality for the financial statements as a whole. Our initial
assessment of performance materiality is based on low inherent risk, meaning that we have applied 80% of
overall materiality as performance materiality.

•

summary of unadjusted audit differences; and

•

summary of disclosure differences (adjusted and unadjusted).

Misstatements
We accumulate misstatements identified during the audit that are other than clearly trivial. We set a level of
triviality for individual errors identified (a reporting threshold) for reporting to the Audit and Standards Committee

Engagement and
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key
judgement areas

Value for money

Fees for audit and
other services

Our commitment to
independence

Materiality and
misstatements

Appendices

31

Appendix: Key communication points

A

Page 98

32

Appendix: Key communication points

We value communication with Those Charged With Governance as a two way feedback process at the heart of
our client service commitment. ISA 260 (UK) ‘Communication with Those Charged with Governance’ and ISA
265 (UK) ‘Communicating Deficiencies In Internal Control To Those Charged With Governance And
Management’ specifically require us to communicate a number of points with you.

•

Our commitment to independence;

•

Responsibilities for preventing and detecting errors;

•

Materiality and misstatements; and

•

Fees for audit and other services.

Relevant points that need to be communicated with you at each stage of the audit are outlined below.

Form, timing and content of our communications

Key communication points at the completion stage to be included in our
Audit Completion Report

We will present the following reports:
Our Audit Strategy Memorandum;

•

Our Audit Completion Report; and

•

Page 99

•

Auditor’s Annual Report

These documents will be discussed with management prior to being presented to yourselves and their
comments will be incorporated as appropriate.

Key communication points at the planning stage as included in this Audit
Strategy Memorandum
•

Our responsibilities in relation to the audit of the financial statements;

•

The planned scope and timing of the audit;

•

Significant audit risks and areas of management judgement;

Engagement and
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key
judgement areas

•

Significant deficiencies in internal control;

•

Significant findings from the audit;

•

Significant matters discussed with management;

•

Our conclusions on the significant audit risks and areas of
management judgement;

•

Summary of misstatements;

•

Management representation letter;

•

Our proposed draft audit report; and

•

Independence.

Value for money

Fees for audit and
other services

Our commitment to
independence

Materiality and
misstatements

Appendices

33

Appendix: Key communication points
ISA (UK) 260 ‘Communication with Those Charged with Governance’, ISA (UK) 265 ‘Communicating Deficiencies In Internal Control To Those Charged With Governance And Management’ and other ISAs (UK) specifically require
us to communicate the following:

Where addressed

Our responsibilities in relation to the financial statement audit and those of management and those charged
with governance.

Audit Strategy Memorandum

The planned scope and timing of the audit including any limitations, specifically including with respect to
significant risks.

Audit Strategy Memorandum

With respect to misstatements:

Audit Completion Report

•
•
•
•

Page 100

Required communication

Uncorrected misstatements and their effect on our audit opinion;
The effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods;
A request that any uncorrected misstatement is corrected; and
In writing, corrected misstatements that are significant.

With respect to fraud communications:

Audit Completion Report and discussion at the Audit and Standards Committee and Accounts Committee
Audit Planning and Clearance meetings

•

Enquiries of the Audit and Standards Committee and senior officers to determine whether they have a
knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud affecting the entity;

•

Any fraud that we have identified or information we have obtained that indicates that fraud may exist; and

•

A discussion of any other matters related to fraud.

Engagement and
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key
judgement areas

Value for money

Fees for audit and
other services

Our commitment to
independence

Materiality and
misstatements

Appendices

34

Appendix: Key communication points

Required communication

Where addressed

Significant matters arising during the audit in connection with the entity’s related parties including,
when applicable:

Audit Completion Report

•

Non-disclosure by management;

•

Inappropriate authorisation and approval of transactions;

•

Disagreement over disclosures;

•

Non-compliance with laws and regulations; and

•

Difficulty in identifying the party that ultimately controls the entity.

Significant findings from the audit including:

•
•
•

Audit Completion Report

Page 101

•

Our view about the significant qualitative aspects of accounting practices including accounting policies,
accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures;
Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit;
Significant matters, if any, arising from the audit that were discussed with management or were the subject
of correspondence with management;
Written representations that we are seeking;

•

Expected modifications to the audit report; and

•

Other matters, if any, significant to the oversight of the financial reporting process or otherwise identified in the
course of the audit that we believe will be relevant to the Audit and Standards Committee and Accounts
Committee in the context of fulfilling their responsibilities.

Significant deficiencies in internal controls identified during the audit.

Audit Completion Report

Where relevant, any issues identified with respect to authority to obtain external confirmations or inability to
obtain relevant and reliable audit evidence from other procedures.

Audit Completion Report

Engagement and
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key
judgement areas

Value for money

Fees for audit and
other services

Our commitment to
independence

Materiality and
misstatements

Appendices

35

Appendix: Key communication points

Required communication

Where addressed

Audit findings regarding non-compliance with laws and regulations where the non-compliance is material and
believed to be intentional (subject to compliance with legislation on tipping off) and enquiry of the Audit and
Standards Committee into possible instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations that may have a
material effect on the financial statements and that the Audit and Standards Committee may be aware of.

Audit Completion Report and Audit and Standards Committee meetings

With respect to going concern, events or conditions identified that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s
ability to continue as a going concern, including:

Audit Completion Report

•
•

Whether the events or conditions constitute a material uncertainty;

Page 102

•

Whether the use of the going concern assumption is appropriate in the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements; and
The adequacy of related disclosures in the financial statements.

Reporting on the valuation methods applied to the various items in the annual or consolidated financial
statements including any impact of changes of such methods.

Audit Completion Report

Explanation of the scope of consolidation and the exclusion criteria applied by the entity to the non-consolidated
entities, if any, and whether those criteria applied are in accordance with the relevant financial reporting
framework.

Audit Strategy Memorandum and/or Audit Completion Report as appropriate

Where applicable, identification of any audit work performed by component auditors in relation to the audit of the
consolidated financial statements other than by Mazars’ member firms.

Audit Strategy Memorandum and/or Audit Completion Report as appropriate

Indication of whether all requested explanations and documents were provided by the entity.

Audit Completion Report

Engagement and
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key
judgement areas

Value for money

Fees for audit and
other services

Our commitment to
independence

Materiality and
misstatements

Appendices

36

Mazars

Page 103

Bank Chambers
26 Mosley Street
Newcastle upon Tyne
NE1 1DF

Mazars is an internationally integrated partnership, specialising in audit, accountancy, advisory, tax
and legal services*. Operating in over 90 countries and territories around the world, we draw on the
expertise of 40,400 professionals – 24,400 in Mazars’ integrated partnership and 16,000 via the
Mazars North America Alliance – to assist clients of all sizes at every stage in their development.
*where permitted under applicable country laws.

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 7
Audit and Standards Committee
26 April 2021

Title of Report: External Auditor: Audit Progress Report
Report of:

Darren Collins, Strategic Director, Resources and Digital

Purpose of the Report
1

This report requests that the Committee note the external auditor’s
progress against planned work.
Background

2

The report summarises the following:



3

2020/21 audit progress.
National publications.

The external auditor’s report is attached at Appendix A.
Recommendation

4

The Committee is requested to note the contents of the external auditor’s
report.

Contact: Natalie Porthouse ext. 3723

Page 105

This page is intentionally left blank

Audit progress report

Page 107

1. Audit progress
2. National publications
Page 108
2

Section 01:
Audit progress

Page 109

Audit progress
Purpose of this report
This report provides the Audit and Standards Committee meeting with an update on progress in delivering our responsibilities as your external auditors and also
includes, at Section 2, for your information, a summary of recent reports and publications.
Audit progress
Housing benefit subsidy return 2019/20
Work is at the point of completion at the time of writing this report.
2020/21 audit
Our Audit Strategy Memorandum for 2020/21 is on the same agenda as this report.

Page 110
9 April 2021

4

Section 02:
National publications

Page 111

National Publications
Publication/update

Key points

Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountability (CIPFA)
1.

Fraud and Corruption Tracker

2.

Consultation on stronger Prudential Code

3.

CIPFA Bulletin 06 – Application of the Good
Governance Framework 2020/21

CIPFA’s latest information has been published.
CIPFA is consulting on the Prudential Code, including proposals to strengthen the requirements for
commercial investments.
Provides updated guidance and takes into account the introduction of the CIPFA Financial Management
Code 2019 during 2020/21.

Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG)

Page 112

4.

MHCLG’s Consultation on amendments to the
Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015

Consultation closed on the 1st March 2021; the Accounts deadline was set as 31 July 2021 and Audit
deadline of 30 September 2021.

National Audit Office (NAO)
5.

Local government finance in the pandemic,
March 2021

6.

Timeliness of local auditor reporting in
England, 2020

7.

The adult social care market in England

8.

Public service pensions

The report found that the Department’s successful monthly collection of data and continued intensive
engagement with the sector provided a good evidence base to underpin the financial and other support
provided by government.
The report is based on published data, the views of local authority finance directors, key stakeholders in
the audit landscape, and audit firms.
COVID-19 has focused attention on social care as never before. It has highlighted existing problems
with social care and emphasised significant gaps in the Department’s understanding of the market. The
renewed focus, impetus and collaborative approach by the Department must be capitalised upon when
government finally focuses on the long-awaited social care reforms.
This report outlines how the public service pensions landscape has changed since the Hutton Review
and highlights key challenges for the future.

9 April 2021

6

NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS
CIPFA
1. Fraud and corruption Tracker, February 2021
The latest CIPFA Fraud and Corruption Tracker (CFaCT), which includes local government data between 1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020, provides a baseline illustration
about the prevalence of grant fraud in the public sector, just before unprecedented levels of COVID-19 grant funding for councils were released by the government in March
of last year. The report follows previous warnings from the National Crime Agency and other law enforcement bodies of an increase in cases related to suspected COVID-19
grant fraud. Valued at an estimated loss of £36.6m, the report reveals only 161 instances of grant fraud occurred in 2019/20.
The report also shows that council tax continued to be the largest area of identified fraud for councils, with more than 30,600 cases totalling £35.9m in 2019/20. This year,
32% of respondents also stated their organisation had been a victim of a Distributed Denial-of-Service (DDOS)/hacking attack in the last 12 months, a 5% increase from the
previous year. Survey respondents also expressed concern about councils' inability to tackle usual areas of fraud due to resource being re-directed into the processing and
review of COVID-19 business grants.

Page 113

https://www.cipfa.org/about-cipfa/press-office/latest-press-releases/grant-fraud-represented-less-than-of-uk-public-sector-fraud-pre-pandemic
2. CIPFA consults on a stronger Prudential Code, January 2021
CIPFA has launched a consultation on proposals to strengthen the Prudential Code, following growing concerns over local government commercial property
investments. The Prudential Code is a professional code of practice that aims to ensure local authorities’ financial plans are affordable, prudent and sustainable. To date, the
provisions in the Code have not prevented a minority of councils from taking on disproportionate levels of commercial debt to generate yield. The proposed changes are
intended to prevent future misinterpretations of the Code and strengthen the necessary regard to its provisions to protect local decision making and innovation. The
consultation will be open for 10 weeks and responses must be submitted by 12 April 2021.
https://www.cipfa.org/about-cipfa/press-office/latest-press-releases/cipfa-consults-on-stronger-local-government-prudential-code
3. CIPFA Bulletin 06, Application of the Good Governance Framework 2020/21, February 2021
This bulletin covers the impact of the continuing COVID-19 pandemic on governance in local government bodies and the requirements of the Delivering Good Governance
in Local Government Framework 2016 CIPFA and Solace (the Framework). It also takes into account the introduction of the CIPFA Financial Management Code 2019 (FM
Code) during 2020/21.
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/cipfa-bulletins/cipfa-bulletin-06-application-of-the-good-governance-framework-202021

7

NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS
MHCLG

4. MHCLG’s Consultation on amendments to the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, February 2021
MCHLG has consulted on its proposed changes to the accounts publication deadline for 2020/21 and 2021/22.

Page 114

The draft regulations includes provisions, at regulation 2 to change the publication deadline for principal authorities from 31 July to 30 September as proposed in
recommendation 10 by the Redmond review, but for 2 years - 2020/21 and 2021/22. The intention is for the amended deadline to be reviewed after that period when it will
be clearer as to whether the audit completion rate has improved.
The draft regulations also enable principal bodies to publish their draft accounts for inspection, linked to the later publication deadline, by removing the fixed period for public
inspection, to say instead that the draft accounts must be published on or before the first working day of August. This will allow authorities and audit firms more flexibility to
schedule their audits in line with the later publication deadline but, importantly, will not prevent them from being signed off earlier. This mirrors the approach taken in the
Accounts and Audit (Amendment) (Coronavirus) Regulations 2020.
MCHLG’s consultation closed on 1 March 2021.

8

NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS
National Audit Office

5. Local government finance in the pandemic, March 2021
The NAO published its report Local government finance in the pandemic in March 2021. Local authorities in England have made a major contribution to the national
response to the pandemic. This has in turn placed significant pressure on finances, which in many cases were already under strain. The report examines if MHCLG’s
approach to local government finance in the COVID-19 pandemic enabled the Department to assess and fund the costs of the new services which local authorities have
been asked to deliver. It also examines whether the Department fulfilled its responsibilities in securing financial sustainability across the sector. The report focuses on:

Page 115

• the financial health of the sector before the pandemic and the financial impact of the pandemic in 2020/21;
• action taken by the government to support the sector in 2020/21, including its effectiveness; and
• action taken by government to support the sector’s financial sustainability in 2021/22.
The report found that the Department’s successful monthly collection of data and continued intensive engagement with the sector provided a good evidence base to
underpin the financial and other support provided by government. Action by the Department and wider government to support the sector averted system-wide financial
failure at a very challenging time and means that the Department managed the most severe risks to value for money in the short term.
However, the financial position of local government remains a cause for concern. Many authorities will be relying on reserves to balance their 2020/21 year-end budgets.
Despite continuing support into 2021/22, the outlook for next year is uncertain. Many authorities are setting budgets for 2021/22 in which they have limited confidence, and
which are balanced through cuts to service budgets and the use of reserves.
https://www.nao.org.uk/report/local-government-finance-in-the-pandemic/

9 April 2021

9

NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS
National Audit Office

6. NAO Report – Timeliness of local auditor reporting in England, 2020
On 16 March, the NAO published its report Timeliness of local auditor reporting on local government in England, 2020. Since 2015, the Comptroller and Auditor General
(C&AG) has been responsible for setting the standards for local public audit in England, through maintaining a Code of Audit Practice and issuing associated guidance to
local auditors. This report sets out the:

Page 116

• roles and responsibilities of local auditors and national bodies to the local audit framework in England; and
• facts relating to the decline in the timeliness of delivering audit opinions on local government in England and the main factors contributing to that decline in timeliness.
The report is based on published data, the views of local authority finance directors, key stakeholders in the audit landscape, and audit firms. The report also considers the
impact on central government. Given the increasing financial challenge and service pressures on local authorities since 2010, local councils need strong arrangements to
manage finances and secure value for money.
The report concludes that the position for 2019/20, with 55% of local authorities failing to publish audited accounts by 30 November, is concerning, given the important part
that external audit plays in assurance over taxpayers’ money both centrally and locally.
Since the NAO reported on local authority governance and audit in 2019, and despite efforts by the various organisations involved in the local audit system and by the
Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government, the report concludes that the situation has worsened. The increase in late audit opinions, concerns about audit
quality and doubts over audit firms’ willingness to continue to audit local authorities all highlight that the situation needs urgent attention, which will require co-operation and
collaboration by all bodies involved in the local audit system, together with clear leadership from government.
https://www.nao.org.uk/report/timeliness-of-local-auditor-reporting-on-local-government-in-england-2020/?slide=1

9 April 2021

10

NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS
National Audit Office

7. NAO Report – the adult social care market in England, March 2021
In 2019/20, local authorities spent a net £16.5 billion on care. Current demographic trends suggest a greater demand for care and increasingly complex care needs in the
future, resulting in care forming an ever-increasing proportion of public expenditure. Future reforms, promised for several years, will need to tackle these growing
challenges. This report examines the current care market and the Department’s role in overseeing the market now and in the future, with the aim of offering insights and
recommendations ahead of future social care reforms.

Page 117

High-quality care is critical to the well-being of some of the most vulnerable adults in society. Yet levels of unpaid care remain high, too many adults have unmet needs and
forecasts predict growing demand for care. The lack of a long-term vision for care and short-term funding has hampered local authorities’ ability to innovate and plan for the
long term, and constrained investment in accommodation and much-needed workforce development. In a vast and diverse social care market, the current accountability and
oversight arrangements do not work. The Department currently lacks visibility of the effectiveness of care commissioned and significant data gaps remain. As such, it cannot
assess the outcomes achieved across the system and whether these are value for money.
COVID-19 has focused attention on social care as never before. It has highlighted existing problems with social care and emphasised significant gaps in the Department’s
understanding of the market. However, we have also seen substantial efforts from those across the sector to deliver these essential services in such challenging
circumstances. The Department has recently taken steps to increase the capacity of its teams; address data gaps, with local government and care providers; and
strengthen system accountability and assurance. This renewed focus, impetus and collaborative approach must be capitalised upon when government finally focuses on the
long-awaited social care reforms.

https://www.nao.org.uk/report/adult-social-care-markets/

9 April 2021

11

NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS
National Audit Office

8. NAO Report – public service pensions, March 2021

Page 118

As an employer, the government provides public service employees with access to occupational pension schemes. As at 31 March 2020, there were more than 8 million
members of four of the largest public service pension schemes (the armed forces, civil service, NHS and teachers’ pension schemes), of which 2.8 million were retired and
receiving pension benefits and 5.2 million were either current or former employees. Around 25% of pensioners and 16% of the working-age population are members of a
public service pension scheme.

In general, public service pensions have become more expensive over time as the number of people receiving them has increased, owing to more members entering
retirement and living longer. This trend applies across public and private pensions and is consistent with international experience. In 2010 the government established the
Independent Public Service Pensions Commission, chaired by Lord Hutton (the Hutton Review) to undertake a fundamental structural review of public service pensions.
Following the Hutton Review final report in March 2011, and a period of negotiations with trade unions representing public service employees, the government introduced
reforms intended to manage the future costs of providing pensions.
Public service pensions are a notable benefit to public servants. HM Treasury focuses on the affordability of these pensions and who pays for them. The total costs of
providing pensions have been increasing over time, reflecting increasing numbers of pensioners. The government’s pension reforms over recent years have contained the
rise in future taxpayer costs by making pensions less generous and by increasing contributions from employees. However, taxpayer funding has increased and it will take
decades for the full effects of the 2011/2015 reforms to be seen in the government’s affordability measure. The balance of taxpayer funding has shifted from central
payments by HM Treasury to employer contributions by departments and organisations to ensure that employers bear the consequences of their employment decisions.
However, HM Treasury needs to monitor more than just affordability. Government’s approach to protecting those nearest retirement has been ruled unlawful and will cost
time and money to resolve. The government’s reforms also take no account of pensions as a recruitment and retention tool, with pensions continuing to be relatively
inflexible; the only real choice for most employees is to stay in the scheme or opt out altogether.

https://www.nao.org.uk/report/public-service-pensions/

9 April 2021

12

Contact

Follow us:

Mazars

LinkedIn:
www.linkedin.com/company/Mazars

Partner: Cameron Waddell

Page 119

Email: cameron.waddell@mazars.co.uk

Senior Manager: Diane Harold
Email: diane.harold@mazars.co.uk

Mazars is an internationally integrated partnership, specialising in audit, accountancy, advisory, tax
and legal services*. Operating in over 90 countries and territories around the world, we draw on the
expertise of 40,400 professionals – 24,400 in Mazars’ integrated partnership and 16,000 via the
Mazars North America Alliance – to assist clients of all sizes at every stage in their development.
*where permitted under applicable country laws.

www.mazars.com

Twitter:
www.twitter.com/MazarsGroup
Facebook:
www.facebook.com/MazarsGroup
Instagram:
www.instagram.com/MazarsGroup
WeChat:
ID: Mazars

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8
Audit and Standards Committee
26 April 2021

Title of Report: Corporate Risk Management 2020/21 - Quarter 4 Update
Report of: Darren Collins, Strategic Director, Resources and Digital
___________________________________________________________________
Purpose of the Report
1. This report updates the Committee on Corporate Risk Management during the
period 1 January 2021 to 31 March 2021.
Background
2. Quarterly reporting to those with the responsibility for the oversight of risk
management issues complies with the principles of good corporate governance. It is
also embodied in the Corporate Risk Management Policy. This was last approved by
Council on 21 May 2013 and is kept under review. Whilst it has been amended to
reflect changes in Senior Officer titles since that time, it remains relevant and fit for
purpose.
3. The report covers progress against the Corporate Risk Management Developmental
Objectives for 2020/21, as cited in the Corporate Risk Management Annual Report
2019/20, and any other risk management issues emerging within the quarter under
consideration.
Strategic Risk Management
4. In November 2018, Cabinet and Council approved a revised Strategic Risk Register
which had been presented to Audit and Standards Committee on 1 October 2018.
The Corporate Management Team has continued to ensure strategic risks are
responded to in accordance with the Risk Management Policy, with risks and
controls being recorded for inclusion within the Strategic Risk Register. As part of the
iterative nature of the Register, risk owners are asked to provide updates as part of
the quarterly reviews, which are then reported to Committee as part of the quarterly
reporting.
5. There have been no changes to the Strategic Risk Register in the fourth quarter
2020/21. The Strategic Risk Register is attached for information in Appendix 1.
Operational Risk Management
6. Operational risks identified within the Council are recorded on the operational risk
register. Work is ongoing to ensure operational risk management activity within
services continues to align with service objectives, including those risks specific to
operational objectives.

Page 121

7. Service Risk Coordinators, whose role it is to support and champion risk
management activity within their Services, are working with the Corporate Risk
Officer to support risk owners with evaluating existing operational risk assessments.
The focus of this work is on ensuring the assessments contain the required
information to inform the management response.
Business Continuity Management
8. In accordance with the Council’s Risk Management and Business Continuity
Policies, all services are required to continuously assess the risk of their activities
being disrupted and to develop cost effective business continuity plans.
9. All Business Impact Assessments were reviewed by Services in March 2020 and
again in November 2020. This was to identify threats to critical activities and
potential increased demand on Council Services following a second wave of
infections, along with other potential pressures such as exit from the EU and
seasonal events like flu and adverse weather.
10. Business Continuity Plans were also revised accordingly to mitigate, as far as
possible, any threats to the delivery of key activities with a focus on activity that
could not be interrupted for more than 48 hours without critical impact. This exercise
was also used to assess which activities might require additional support to
strengthen resilience and estimated the officer numbers and skills that might be
needed.
11. Where these could not be provided by redeployment from within the Service or
Group, redeployment of officers would be sought from Services that had either been
stood down due to COVID or could be reduced in the short term without significant
impact.
12. Quarterly audit and risk reports are provided to Group Management Teams to
highlight the activities for which services have developed continuity plans.
Corporate Risk and Resilience Group
13. The Corporate Risk and Resilience Group is currently being refocused to a
Corporate Risk and Business Continuity Group to more accurately reflect the needs
of the Council. Membership and terms of reference of the group will be reconsidered
and the group will be coordinated by the Service Director, Commercialisation &
Improvement.
14.This revised group will remain within the remit of this committee.
Recommendation
15. It is recommended that the Committee note the report and consider the effectiveness
of the Council’s risk management arrangements.

Contact: Natalie Porthouse Ext. 3723

Page 122

Appendix 1
Strategic Risk Register as at 31 March 2021
*Ranked in order of Gross Risk

Ref

Risk

Risk owner

10

Failure to comply with the housing regulatory standards
applicable to Local Authorities.

8

The implications of EU Exit potentially affecting the
availability of Council’s resources to deliver services
which may impact on communities.
The Council is hit by a Cyber-attack that compromises
the confidentiality, integrity and availability of information
and systems.
Failure to address the financial gap in the Council’s
budget and achieve the target within the Medium-Term
Financial Strategy resulting in non-achievement of
Council strategic priority of Making Gateshead a Place
Where Everyone Thrives.
Failure to manage demand and expectations could
result in the Council not achieving its Thrive agenda.
Failure to safeguard vulnerable children and adults
Failure to address workforce planning and resourcing
requirements impacting on service delivery.
Failure to attract inward investment and deliver
sustainable economic growth.
Non-compliance with statutory requirements resulting in
prosecution and subsequent penalties.
Failure to provide a response during a Major incident or
business interruption affecting availability of the
Council’s resources and impacting on ability to deliver
critical services or an impact on a community.

Service Director –
Housing
Compliance
Brexit Lead Officer

9

Page 123

1

2
3
6
4
5
7

Current risk
*Gross Likelihood Impact
Score
Risk
20
Likely
High
16

16

Likely

Medium

12

CMT

16

Moderate

High

12

CMT

16

Likely

Medium

12

CMT

16

Moderate

Medium

9

CMT
CMT

16
16

Unlikely
Moderate

High
Low

8
6

CMT

12

Moderate

Medium

9

CMT

12

Likely

Low

8

CMT

8

Unlikely

Medium

6

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 10

By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 125

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 11

By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 129

This page is intentionally left blank

